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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Good morning and

          3  welcome to this historic hearing of the New York

          4  City Council's Committee on Governmental Operations.

          5  Forgive my throat.  It is just the beginning of the

          6  day, too, so you can imagine.

          7                 My name is Bill Perkins and I am the

          8  Council's Deputy Majority Leader, and I am also

          9  Chair of this Committee on Governmental Operations.

         10                 Before we proceed, I would like to

         11  invite all of you to join me in marking a moment of

         12  silence in honor of Pope John Paul II.

         13                 (Moment of Silence observed.)

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you.

         15                 I said earlier that this will be a

         16  historic hearing. I say this because I believe that

         17  the legislation that we will be considering today,

         18  the New York City Human Rights Government Operations

         19  Audit Law, in other words, the Human Rights Goal,

         20  when it becomes law, will change and alter the

         21  history of this City forever.  It will be a change

         22  that is overdue, and a change for the better.  I

         23  also say historic, because today, right here in this

         24  chamber, we will hear from none other, than the

         25  honorable David Dinkins, New York City's first
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          2  African American Mayor, a humanary (sic.) In any

          3  room, on any platform, an authority on any topic

          4  that has to do with good government, civil rights

          5  and human rights.  A man who has committed his life

          6  and his work to public service, and even now, today,

          7  is committed to giving even more.

          8                 Now ask yourselves, why?  Why does

          9  Mayor Dave Dinkins see a need to come back to City

         10  Hall to talk to us about this legislation?  Why is

         11  this particular piece of legislation so important,

         12  that it requires someone of his stature, to speak on

         13  its behalf?  The reason is simple.  Our work is not

         14  over.  Our struggle, our mighty struggle for peace

         15  and justice for equality, is not over.  With much

         16  respect to the words of that old Negro spiritual, we

         17  have not yet overcome.  Discrimination remains the

         18  hornet's nest within our midst.  It is still tugging

         19  at the seams of hope and justice in our fair City.

         20  When we see reports that show women and people of

         21  color being kept out of the upper echelons of City

         22  government, that they are being confined to low wage

         23  jobs, when the U.S. Department of Justice is forced

         24  to investigate the fire department, when in fact

         25  lawsuits must be brought to confront, the system to
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          2  confront the fire department's failure to recruit

          3  and promote minorities, then you know that

          4  discrimination remains a problem.  When health

          5  disparities persist, when people of color and women,

          6  especially women, the caretakers and true guardians

          7  of our society, when they suffer from chronic

          8  diseases, preventable diseases, from premature

          9  mortality rates, and numbers that far out strip

         10  their counterparts in other communities, when even

         11  the City's own Health Department is forced to admit,

         12  that among the factors that account for the

         13  staggering health disparities between the races, and

         14  between the genders, is discrimination,

         15  discrimination, discrimination.

         16                 Then I think, ladies and gentlemen,

         17  that we all agree that New York City has a very

         18  serious, indeed, a critical, a very critical

         19  problem.  Well, I am here to say that we can, and

         20  must, do better.  The City deserves to do better,

         21  and that is why I have sponsored the New York City

         22  Human Rights Goal, because I believe, as do many of

         23  my colleagues, that it will be a step, in fact, the

         24  next step, in the right direction.

         25                 The hallmarks of this bill are many.
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          2  It is founded on a Human Rights framework as

          3  contained in two international treaties, the

          4  Convention on the Elimination of all forms of Racial

          5  Discrimination, otherwise know as CERD, and the

          6  Convention on the Elimination of all forms of

          7  Discrimination Against Women, otherwise known as CED

          8  A W.  CEDAW.

          9                 These international treaties have set

         10  a standard for all the world to aspire to.  They

         11  recognize their governments must to more, that they

         12  must be proactive.  That they have an affirmative

         13  responsibility to identify and eliminate

         14  discrimination, in their own operations.

         15                 It is not enough to make a speech and

         16  condemn discrimination, and then to go along as if

         17  there was no work to do. These treaties have proven

         18  that active oversight, and regular reporting of

         19  progress on human rights goals, are effective tools

         20  in the fight against the ignorance and disease, that

         21  is discrimination.            Notably, these

         22  treaties have established a principal that a

         23  discriminatory effect is just as invidious, just as

         24  dangerous, as its discriminatory intent.  That a

         25  discriminatory effect cries out, and must be

                                                            9

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  addressed and remedied.  And that government has the

          3  mandate to be the instrument of repair.

          4                 Our bill models that conception, and

          5  I believe, rightly so.  It has many other provisions

          6  as well, and when we hear about some of them today,

          7  I invite the public to examine the bill itself, as

          8  well as the briefing report that will be available.

          9  You will soon find these items on the council's

         10  website, in the area devoted to the Committee on

         11  Governmental Operations.

         12                 Just some final words on the inherent

         13  dignity of every human being.  Pope John Paul II

         14  once gave a speech to the Congress on human rights.

         15  He said that, "Each human being has the right to

         16  make the gifts he has received from God fruitful".

         17  I agree with that.  It is a socratic notion, as

         18  well.  The Pope continued, saying that, "Promotion

         19  of human rights" is a mission. Again, I agree.  That

         20  is why I have sponsored this legislation, and why I

         21  hope that this committee and this council, will do

         22  the right thing and send this legislation forward.

         23  Of course, as Mayor Dinkins knows, from personal

         24  experience, success in government, as in life, does

         25  not come easy.  The journey we embark upon today
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          2  will be a challenging one.  I am speaking now, not

          3  just to my colleagues, but especially to the

          4  advocates, also many to name, although you know who

          5  you are, who have worked so tirelessly on behalf of

          6  this bill.  I understand that we will face many

          7  critics. Be prepared, and all probability someone

          8  laud our goals and then proceed to attack our

          9  tactics, to dismiss them, perhaps even to ridicule

         10  them.

         11                 Let us not despair.  Once it fell

         12  upon man to be the first person of color to climb to

         13  the loftiest heights of New York City government.

         14  Today, it is our turn to bring that government back

         15  down to the people, to all the people that it was

         16  meant to serve.  This may seem like a far away goal,

         17  a very high goal, beyond our reach.  But remember,

         18  we do not stand on our own, we stand on the

         19  shoulders of giants.

         20                 I want to acknowledge the fact that

         21  we are joined by Council Member Michael Nelson, and

         22  we will be joined by other members of the committee,

         23  who are engaged in other meetings, but they will be

         24  in and out.

         25                 I would also like to acknowledge the
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          2  work of Sandy Dillon, the Committee's Policy

          3  Analyst, Danny Serrano, the Counsel to the Committee

          4  on Governmental Operations.

          5                 Without further ado, we will call on

          6  our first panel.  Okay, I am going to ask you ladies

          7  to hold off for a minute, please.  We are going to

          8  have another first panel.  There has been a last

          9  minute change.  Representing the administration, Mr.

         10  Anthony Crowell will be the first panel, the first

         11  witness.

         12                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Mr.

         13  Crowell, do you swear and affirm, that the testimony

         14  that you are about to give this committee, will be

         15  the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the

         16  truth?

         17                 MR. CROWELL: I do.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: You can begin.

         19                 MR. CROWELL: All right, thank you.

         20  Good Morning Chairman Perkins and members of the

         21  committee.  I am Anthony Crowell, Special Counsel to

         22  Mayor Michael R. Bloomberg, and I am here to address

         23  Intro 512A.  As Mayor Bloomberg has made clear, any

         24  form of illegal discrimination in City government or

         25  elsewhere in New York City, is unacceptable,
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          2  offensive, threatens productivity, and will not be

          3  tolerated.  To that end, the Mayor remains strongly

          4  committed to having a municipal work force that

          5  reflects the diversity and talent of our City's

          6  population, and he has mandated that all City

          7  agencies maintain an environment that is both

          8  consistent with the law, and the City's own

          9  policies, and free of bigotry and biases.  Indeed, I

         10  am here to declare the administration's support for

         11  the goals of this legislation. However, we believe

         12  strongly that, although always a work in progress,

         13  the administrative mechanisms and processes to

         14  achieve these goals, are already in place throughout

         15  City government.

         16                 To begin, the bill appears to be

         17  based on the premise that New York City government

         18  lacks laws, plans, approaches and devices, to

         19  prevent discrimination, or foster community

         20  participation, in the governmental process.  In

         21  fact, City agencies are guided, and required by a

         22  wide array of Federal, State and local laws, as well

         23  as agency procedures, to insure City administration

         24  is conducted in an open manner, with public input,

         25  and avoids discriminatory practices.  This bill does
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          2  not recognize the variety of existing City agencies

          3  and programs, and also declines to adopt a realistic

          4  approach to governing, that identifies and remedies

          5  real problems, rather than furthering academic or

          6  theoretical constructs.  The Mayor and council have

          7  generally shared this pragmatic approach to

          8  governing, and as examples, I would point to the

          9  council's enactment of local law 73 in 2003, which

         10  mandated access to City services for the large

         11  number of New Yorkers who are limited English

         12  proficient, to the bipartisan tradition of executive

         13  orders designed to preserve access to City services

         14  for immigrants, and to the Mayor's recent creation

         15  of a new commission, of which many prominent New

         16  Yorkers are members, including Congressman Charles

         17  Rangel, to explore how the City can take advantage

         18  of the construction boom, to increase opportunities

         19  from minorities and women to be involved in all

         20  aspects of construction in the City.

         21                 New York City's government may not be

         22  utopian, but its structure of agencies, programs and

         23  procedures, deliver services to all New Yorkers,

         24  every day, regardless of their race, sex, religion,

         25  nationality or sexual orientation.  And it is
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          2  constantly identifying and implementing new ways to

          3  improve that delivery of services.

          4                 Now, first I will discuss some

          5  existing programs and policies.  The bill ignores

          6  the fact that the City already takes a highly

          7  proactive approach to identifying and resolving

          8  possible discrimination.  For example, when the City

          9  receives Federal funding, which it does for several

         10  programs, it is expressly required by Title VI of

         11  the Federal Civil Rights Act, to avoid

         12  discrimination in the administration of its

         13  programs.

         14                 On the local level, the Charter

         15  requires the Department of City- wide Administrative

         16  Services, known as DCAS, to establish and enforce

         17  uniform procedures, and standards to be, and which

         18  are, utilized by all City agencies in establishing

         19  measures, programs, and plans to ensure a fair and

         20  effective affirmative employment plan, for equal

         21  employment opportunity from minority group members

         22  and women, who are employed by, or who seek

         23  employment, with City agencies.

         24                 DCAS's efforts are administered

         25  through its Office of City- wide Equal Employment
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          2  Opportunity, which assists the commissioner of DCAS

          3  to develop and enforce the City's Equal Employment

          4  Opportunity Policy and other EEO related policies,

          5  standards and procedures.  The City's EEO policy

          6  sets forth the protection available under federal,

          7  State and local laws, that protect everyone who

          8  works within New York City government or its work

          9  places, or who seeks employment within City

         10  government, against discrimination.  The policy

         11  prohibits discriminatory employment actions against

         12  and treatment of City employees and applicants for

         13  employment, based on actual or perceived race,

         14  color, national origin, alienage, or citizenship

         15  status, religion or creed, gender, including gender

         16  identity, which refers to a person's actual or

         17  perceived sex, and includes self image, appearance,

         18  behavior or expression, whether or not different

         19  from that traditionally associated with the legal

         20  sex assigned to the person at birth, also

         21  disability, age, military status, prior record of

         22  arrest or conviction, marital status, genetic

         23  predisposition or carrier status, sexual

         24  orientation, or status as a victim of domestic

         25  violence, a sex offense or stalking.
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          2                 The Office of City- wide EEO also

          3  assists the City's agencies by developing or

          4  collaborating on solution strategies and

          5  initiatives, to effectively implement and fulfill

          6  the City's responsibilities under the Fair

          7  Employment Provisions of the City Charter and other

          8  federal, State and local laws.  In addition, City-

          9  wide EEO monitors the EEO related activities and

         10  data of City agencies.  City- wide EEO also trains

         11  New York City employees who are serving as agency

         12  EEO officers, and other EEO professionals, including

         13  EEO counselors, and investigators, or trainers who

         14  conduct EEO training within their agencies.  The

         15  training courses include an overview of federal,

         16  State and local anti discrimination laws, including

         17  types of conduct which are discriminatory,

         18  accommodation issues in the work place, including

         19  disability and religious discrimination, complaint

         20  handling, sexual and other forms of harassment, and

         21  diversity.

         22                 Furthermore, the City's Commission on

         23  Human Rights, another Charter agency, is empowered

         24  to enforce the City's long standing and

         25  comprehensive Human Rights Law, one of the most far
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          2  reaching in the nation, which protects New Yorkers

          3  against discrimination in virtually every aspect of

          4  their lives.  The law prohibits discrimination in

          5  employment, housing, and public accommodations,

          6  based on race, color, creed, age, national origin,

          7  alienage or citizenship status, gender, including

          8  gender identity and sexual harassment, sexual

          9  orientation, disability and marital status.  In

         10  addition, the law offers protection against

         11  discrimination in employment, base on an arrest or

         12  conviction record, and status as a victim of

         13  domestic violence, stalking and sex offenses.  In

         14  housing, the law affords additional protection based

         15  on lawful occupation and family status.  The law

         16  also prohibits retaliation and bias- related

         17  harassment.

         18                 The City Commission is responsible

         19  for the intake, investigation and prosecution of

         20  complaints, alleging violations of the Human Rights

         21  Law.  It also helps cultivate understanding and

         22  respect among the City's many diverse communities,

         23  through its borough- based community service

         24  centers, and numerous educational and Outreach

         25  programs.  Some of the programs are administered in
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          2  partnership with federal agencies, including the

          3  U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission.

          4                 Now, at the local level, the Equal

          5  Employment Practices Commission, EEPC, is an

          6  independent Charter agency, responsible for

          7  monitoring the Equal Employment Programs, practices,

          8  policies and procedures, of all local government

          9  agencies that are funded in whole, or in part by the

         10  City.  Or have a major, I am sorry, or have a

         11  majority of board members who are appointed by the

         12  Mayor, or who serve by virtue of being City

         13  officers.  EEPC is authorized to conduct studies,

         14  investigations and hearings, to determine whether

         15  agencies are in compliance with Equal Employment

         16  Opportunity requirements.  Further, EEPC is required

         17  to audit the Equal Employment Practices of all City

         18  agencies, at least once every four years.  EEPC is

         19  also empowered to establish advisory committees, and

         20  make recommendations to the Mayor, the City Council,

         21  or any other City agency to insure equal employment

         22  opportunity.

         23                 Now there are also some other

         24  processes and programs that I would like to discuss.

         25    Indeed, the Charter and Administrative Code, also
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          2  set forth a variety of processes and agency programs

          3  that already encourage transparency, democracy and

          4  public input in the development of City policies.

          5  Indeed, the structure of New York City's government

          6  recognizes the importance of communities, from the

          7  division of the City into 51 local council

          8  districts, to the 59 community boards that have a

          9  vital and explicit role in zoning, land use and

         10  budget decisions.  One example involves agency rule

         11  making, the process by which agencies implement the

         12  laws that the council legislates.  Indeed, rules

         13  have a profound effect on the every day lives of New

         14  Yorkers.  The City Administrative Procedure Act,

         15  known as CAPA, is found in Chapter 35 of the

         16  Charter.  CAPA is a very public process and with

         17  limited exceptions, it generally takes a minimum of

         18  60 days to complete. As you may know, under CAPA, an

         19  agency must provide notice and publish a rule,

         20  publish a proposed rule, in the City record, seek

         21  public comment, and hold a hearing no sooner than 30

         22  days after the date of that first publication.  And

         23  after the hearing, the agency must publish a final

         24  rule, which then cannot take effect for at least

         25  another 30 days.
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          2                 Another example is that of the City's

          3  budget process.  It involves numerous public

          4  reports, disclosures and oversight mechanisms,

          5  designed to promote transparency.  The Charter also

          6  establishes a Voter Assistance Commission and the

          7  Campaign Finance Board, to facilitate the democratic

          8  process, by maximizing voter and candidate

          9  participation.  VAC, with a variety of ex officio

         10  and appointed members, holds public hearings

         11  throughout the year, and after each election, at

         12  which members of the public are invited to offer

         13  their comments and suggestions concerning the City's

         14  election process.  VAC encourages and facilitates

         15  voter registration and voting by all eligible U.S.

         16  Citizens residing in New York City.  VAC is strictly

         17  non- partisan and does not promote any candidate for

         18  elected office, political party or political agenda.

         19    Its mission is to increase participation in the

         20  democratic process.  And to achieve this goal, VAC

         21  monitors voter registration and voting in New York

         22  City.  It also works with City agencies, private

         23  groups and individuals and community- based

         24  organizations to promote voter registration and

         25  voter participation.  The Campaign Finance Board
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          2  oversees a generous program that matches campaign

          3  contributions with public funds, and enables people

          4  to get involved by running for elective office.  And

          5  it publishes and mails a comprehensive voter guide

          6  before local city- wide elections.  These are just a

          7  few examples of the many ways that the City

          8  encourages and incorporates community input into

          9  government action.

         10                 Now I would like to address some

         11  legal concerns. The bill seeks to promote a new and

         12  expansive definition of rights. But it is drafted in

         13  a way that will defeat the realization of its goals.

         14    Many of its problems stem from phrasing these

         15  goals in mandatory, rather than aspirational,

         16  language.  These mandates are so broad, and so

         17  vague, that they would cause endless disputes over

         18  their intent and bureaucratic confusion.  Despite

         19  the bill's apparent goal of avoiding a litigation-

         20  based approach to human rights, it would drastically

         21  increase the City's potential for lawsuits.  Rather

         22  than defining the types of discrimination to be

         23  avoided, identified or eradicated, the bill's

         24  definition of discrimination is so broad, as to be

         25  seemingly impossible to implement.
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          2                 For example, the bill seems to

          3  prohibit the unintentional restriction of a group,

          4  without any attempt to define the perimeters of any

          5  of these terms.  Notably, with no indication of what

          6  might be considered a group.

          7                 As another example, the bill appears

          8  to mandate collective bargaining, but it does not

          9  define the term or its application, and it ignores

         10  the City's existing collective bargaining procedures

         11  as set forth in State law.  Such an amorphous

         12  approach to government will inevitably overlap,

         13  conflict with, and duplicate unnecessarily, the

         14  powers and duties of officials at every level of

         15  government.

         16                 Such broad mandates and terminology

         17  do not further the bill's stated intention to

         18  eliminate discrimination, because they fail to give

         19  agencies, City employees and City contractors,

         20  meaningful notice, as to what it is that the bill

         21  requires them to do, or not to do.  At best, the

         22  lack of specificity would result in uncertainty or

         23  inaction.  At worst, it would spawn endless disputes

         24  and devalue the real and positive protection already

         25  afforded by federal, State and local anti-
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          2  discrimination laws.

          3                 Specifically, the bill requires all

          4  City agencies to generate regular and quite detailed

          5  reports, plans and audits, covering overall policy

          6  and routine agency actions.  Although the bill

          7  attempts to limit the use of the various documents

          8  and litigation against the City, this attempt is

          9  simply not legal.  The admissibility of evidence is

         10  a matter of fate of Federal and State law.  The

         11  City, as you will agree, simply does not have the

         12  power to declare, by local law, that certain types

         13  of evidence are inadmissible in Federal or State

         14  court.  The audits, plans and related documents

         15  could thus be used against the City in lawsuits,

         16  based upon novel theories encouraged by this

         17  proposal.

         18                 In addition to the very burdensome

         19  new requirements imposed on all agencies to make

         20  regular audits and reports, the bill would create

         21  two new bodies to oversee these new mandates. Now,

         22  as I have mentioned, New York City already has

         23  several agencies and programs dedicated to the

         24  identification and amelioration of discriminatory

         25  practices.  And not all of these agencies or

                                                            24

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  programs rely solely on what the bill calls negative

          3  litigation- based methods.  Rather, the City's law

          4  contains a careful mix of approaches.  The addition

          5  of two enforcement agencies, the Human Rights Task

          6  Force and the Human Rights Advisory Group, will

          7  complicate and burden the work of these existing

          8  agencies and programs.

          9                 In any event, the two new proposed

         10  entities would present serious legal concerns under

         11  the Charter.  While their powers are not clearly

         12  delineated, it appears that their members would be

         13  public officers.  Both however, include members who

         14  are not appointed solely by the Mayor.  Indeed, even

         15  the Mayor's discretion in making his or her own

         16  employments, is significantly restricted.  The bill

         17  would thus curtail the Mayor's executive and

         18  appointment powers.  As a result, and in light of

         19  these curtailments, this bill requires a voter

         20  referendum, in order to be created by local law.

         21                 Now, in conclusion, New York City is

         22  a pioneer in promoting and guaranteeing civil

         23  rights.  Indeed, both the City Council and the

         24  administration, already devote substantial time and

         25  resources to ensuring that the values of human
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          2  rights inform City government, as well as life

          3  throughout the City.  There are important provisions

          4  of State and local law and rules that are devoted to

          5  this goal, in addition to entire City agencies.

          6  Members of this committee and the City Council, as a

          7  whole, have a vital oversight role to play in this

          8  process.  Now if there are particular areas where we

          9  are not doing all we should, or could, to reach all

         10  those who are in need of City programs and services,

         11  then let us address those areas together and resolve

         12  them through existing administrative mechanisms.

         13  There is no doubt, that these efforts require a

         14  continuing commitment, but codification of new

         15  mandates is no substitute for such commitment, and

         16  it ignores the real progress that we have already

         17  made.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         19  much for your testimony.

         20                 I want to acknowledge the presence of

         21  Council Member Reed, Councilman Peter Vallone and

         22  Councilwoman Christine Quinn.

         23                 I want to get to the fact that,

         24  despite all these efforts that you site, and all

         25  these agencies and the record that you site, how
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          2  does the administration account for some of the

          3  recent problems that scream about discrimination,

          4  not only within the hiring practices of the

          5  administration, but also in terms of the contracting

          6  processes of the administration.  I am talking about

          7  reports such as blacks in government, which reflect

          8  how many, few people of color are in managerial

          9  positions.  I am talking about a recent study by the

         10  City Council which pointed out the lack of diversity

         11  and contracting to women and minorities, and I am

         12  talking about the Federal oversight of the Justice

         13  Department is looking into the practices of the fire

         14  department.  So, clearly, what is in place is not

         15  working.

         16                 MR. CROWELL: Well, as I said in my

         17  testimony, the Mayor recently appointed a new

         18  Construction Commission that is looking into the

         19  issues you raised concerning contracting, and in the

         20  construction industry, as far as City agencies

         21  including DOT and FDNY, the Mayor has made clear

         22  that the issues are to be looked at, and to the

         23  extent that problems are found, or where there are

         24  problems, that they have corrective action taken.  I

         25  think the Mayor has been clear with that, and this
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          2  is not a problem that is new to this administration,

          3  it is something that a government always has to re-

          4  access itself and work to do better and indeed, the

          5  administration has committed to doing that, to the

          6  extent it needs to be done.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Unfortunately,

          8  the point at which the administration reacts, is

          9  after the fact, after the fact, in a very, very

         10  dramatic egregious way.  So, we, like, years and

         11  years later decide, that the fire department is

         12  discriminating, years and years later decide that

         13  there is this discrimination with respect to

         14  managerial hiring, and then of course, years and

         15  years later, decide that there is this problem with

         16  regard to contracting.  And we, and it would seem to

         17  me that we would want to do something proactive and

         18  preventative, something that anticipates these

         19  problems.  First, that there is not these type of

         20  reactions when the problem in this is so severe, and

         21  you do not have to bring in someone like a

         22  Congressman Charles Rangel, who by the way, as I

         23  know, initiated the effort to create that

         24  commission, and in fact, that commission has not

         25  actually done anything yet, in terms of addressing
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          2  the problem, and has not resulted in any concrete

          3  efforts.

          4                 MR. CROWELL: Well, the commission was

          5  just started actually in the past month --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: That is my

          7  point.

          8                 MR. CROWELL: -- And they have met and

          9  there serious work being undertaken right now, to

         10  achieve the goals that the Mayor set forth for the

         11  commission.  So, I do not think that you can say

         12  that, that progress is not being made.  It certainly

         13  is, and --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Do you have,

         15  okay --

         16                 MR. CROWELL: -- Well, the idea is

         17  that the Mayor, and the Mayor asked this group to

         18  come together to develop goals and commitments, to

         19  achieve the results he set forth for establishing

         20  the commission.  So, I think that, that to the

         21  extent, there is an issue, the Mayor is addressing

         22  it, and he has got a very- broad based group of

         23  people from government leaders to business leaders,

         24  construction leaders, union leaders, working on this

         25  issue and committing to finding solutions and making
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          2  plans to do better.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Well, there is

          4  no question that he has a high profile group of

          5  leaders that with great credibility in the community

          6  and in the City, but again, this is, first of all,

          7  after the fact, after the report came out, that the

          8  council found such disparities, then we react.

          9  After the discrimination takes place, is when the

         10  commissioner set out.

         11                 MR. CROWELL: Right.  With all due

         12  respect, the disparity study is largely based on

         13  contracts from years before Mayor Bloomberg was

         14  Mayor.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: All right, this

         16  is not a criticism, by the way of Mayor Bloomberg.

         17                 MR. CROWELL: No, no, but I am saying

         18  that as a result of the problem that was identified

         19  through our study and through our own internal work,

         20  the Mayor aggressively took actions to do that

         21  through existing administrative mechanisms, and by

         22  working with a broad- based coalition of people to

         23  get at whatever problems are identified.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: You also realize

         25  that these are suits are not only costly in terms of
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          2  the individuals that are discriminated against, the

          3  discrimination is not only costing in terms of the

          4  individuals that are discriminated against, but also

          5  costly to the City in terms of the suits that are,

          6  that ensue as was noted in this week's papers, with

          7  one lawsuit regarding the fire department in which a

          8  black fire officer was denied a promotion,

          9  apparently simply because he was black  And he was

         10  awarded, I think $50 thousand dollars.  So, there

         11  are costs that are incurred, not just in terms of

         12  the particular individuals, but also, more

         13  importantly, in terms of the City, which would have

         14  to actually pay for these lawsuits.

         15                 MR. CROWELL: Well, the City has

         16  300,000 employees and a variety of laws and policies

         17  in place to prevent discrimination, and I think the

         18  City has done a very strong job in trying to make

         19  sure that discriminatory practices do not occur, and

         20  to the extent that they can stop them, they do, and

         21  when there are issues that happen in agencies, we

         22  react, often unfortunately, there may be litigation

         23  or settlements that happen, but it is the exception,

         24  it is not the rule.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: One could say
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          2  that the Bloomberg administration is not responsible

          3  for all the discrimination that has been taking

          4  place, that has been documented and reported.  But

          5  then the Bloomberg administration has to take some

          6  responsibility for not acting, as it has been

          7  reported.  And I think the reports, like Blacks in

          8  Government and the report of the city council and

          9  what is going on with our fire department, the fact

         10  that we have this serious problem, a problem that is

         11  after the fact, that we are reacting to these

         12  problems after the fact, that we are not taking

         13  proactive action to prevent the discrimination. And

         14  I would dare say that there is probably more of

         15  these instances now, than has been in a long time.

         16                 MR. CROWELL: Well, I simply do not

         17  believe that to be the case, and I believe that

         18  there is existing mechanisms in place to ensure that

         19  there is equal opportunities in hiring and retention

         20  and recruitment.  Certainly, in the law enforcement

         21  and fire department areas, there have been

         22  aggressive recruiting for members of minority and

         23  women.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Two percent is

         25  the result of that aggressive recruitment?  Two
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          2  percent is the result of the administration's

          3  aggressiveness.

          4                 MR. CROWELL: Well, the administration

          5  has taken many steps --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay.

          7                 MR. CROWELL: -- To increase the

          8  recruitment, yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Council Member

         10  Reed,

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Chair.  I apologize for being a little tardy, but

         13  you can hear from my voice, as I am sure many people

         14  have been trying to get through this season.

         15                 I think the hearing on this bill is

         16  timely, but it is actually timeless, because we seem

         17  to be doing this every administration over and over

         18  and over again, and do not get a lot of actual

         19  results.  I think that is really the frustration

         20  that so many of us feel and why I think the

         21  legislation is important, and why you hear these

         22  questions about now, we have a commission.  But the

         23  fact is, I think we have always had all these things

         24  in place to look, but we do not ever see do (sic.).

         25  And that is really what the concern is and I think,
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          2  you know, you take a snap shot of things in time,

          3  and then you take a snapshot at some other time, and

          4  it is fascinating how it really never changes.  And

          5  that is the concern that people have.  And I would

          6  dare say, and would be happy to be wrong, but if you

          7  took just a snapshot of the Mayor's office across

          8  the hall, or the Mayor's senior staff, which does

          9  not require union review or any of those things, you

         10  would not find a very pretty or diverse picture.

         11                 So, that is the concern that many of

         12  us have.  Yes, we need to look at, you know, the

         13  FDNY has been ridiculous for decades.  We have all

         14  recognized that.  There is just, you know, the

         15  structure that is there in that situation.  Why

         16  there has not been ore lawsuits?  I do not know.

         17  But it is impossible to not take this seriously,

         18  when I can take a snapshot right over there, on the

         19  other side of the stairwell, and not see what we

         20  should be seeing.  It is fascinating that to me, I

         21  think this is the frustration that people feel in

         22  the communities that we represent, and even in a

         23  broad cloth across the City of people who just feel

         24  it is unfair that, even, whatever side of the

         25  agreement that you come out on, on this Jets
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          2  Stadium, it is fascinating, you know, that somehow,

          3  instantaneously, at the last minute, the Jets were

          4  able to get, cut through every problem that there

          5  was, and all of the sudden every damn job at the

          6  stadium seems to be going to minorities and women,

          7  in order to secure the reality that the thing gets

          8  built.  Now, EDC should have been doing this, and

          9  securing these issues and these contracts and these

         10  jobs, years ago, and all the other projects and

         11  developments.  But the last desperate grasp to get

         12  African American, Latino, Asian women to support

         13  this project, all of the sudden, you were able to

         14  find jobs.  It is amazing.

         15                 So, I think that is where this piece

         16  of legislation is important to have real people,

         17  sitting on real commissions, to say there are real

         18  time frames, for real results.  And, you know, it is

         19  fascinating also that if you say, well you know, we

         20  are snatching away the Mayor's power to appoint

         21  people to his own commission.  The Mayor ought to

         22  welcome the fact that we are going to have citizens

         23  involved, and not just sort of, you know, wait a

         24  minute, now you are taking away my authority.  Step

         25  up and say, we would be happy to have you because I
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          2  want to solve the problem.  I think that is what we

          3  would like to hear from this administration.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: He did offer 311

          5  for his new volunteer program.

          6                 MR. CROWELL: Well, let me address the

          7  council member's issues. First off, on the issue of

          8  contracting, the Mayor from day one, was very

          9  committed to the issue, and certainly the Department

         10  of Small Business Services has implemented,

         11  continued to implement, a fine minority business

         12  enterprise program, which is growing daily and has

         13  made great efforts.  And as much as EDC is involved,

         14  there certainly has been a commitment to bring about

         15  these issues.  This issue obviously, where the

         16  Construction Commission now will allow EDC to enter

         17  into partnerships with new goals in place to better

         18  insure that construction projects that are going on,

         19  actually achieve the goals that the commission will

         20  be working toward.  And I do think there is a very

         21  strong commitment on the Mayor to diverse.  As far

         22  as Mayoral powers go, the Mayor appoints the Human

         23  Rights Commission, that commission does fine work

         24  and is central to eradicating discrimination in the

         25  City. Obviously, the Department of City- wide
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          2  Administration has a very, very strong mandate and

          3  it does a fine job and extensive.  It covers all the

          4  City agencies. There are oversight agencies, and I

          5  think what you need to do is, look toward what are

          6  the existing mechanisms?  Many of the mechanisms

          7  that the council itself put in place, all that work

          8  towards the same goal that your bill is working

          9  toward, but I think it is to harness --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I guess what we

         11  would like to know is, in the three years that the

         12  Mayor has been in office, other than this little two

         13  percent, what have we seen in terms of advancement,

         14  or is it now, which I do not think, only now, on the

         15  Mayor's radar screen that there is discrimination or

         16  there is inequity.  Let us not say there is

         17  discrimination.  Let us say that whatever happened

         18  was benign, but the reality is, that there is a lack

         19  of diversity, and an absence of talent that might

         20  bring a different view to City government.  And so,

         21  what has changed?  Back to these snapshots.  If from

         22  January 1st of 2002 to where we are today on April

         23  8th of 2005, if I look, would I see a big dramatic

         24  change?  What does the snapshot across the hall look

         25  like?  Are you willing for us to go take a picture
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          2  of that, figuratively speaking? And present that at

          3  the next hearing and say this is emblematic of what

          4  the Mayor thinks the work force ought to look like?

          5  Because that is his choices across the hall.  Should

          6  we take that photo? Would you be willing to say that

          7  is a good photograph?

          8                 MR. CROWELL: I think the Mayor has

          9  appointed many, many members of minority communities

         10  and women to very high level positions in City

         11  agencies, whether it be commissioners, deputy

         12  commissioners, throughout the hundred plus boards

         13  and commissions that he makes appointments to.  I

         14  think there is a strong record of diverse

         15  appointments to that, and I think that shows a

         16  commitment. And there is a commitment through

         17  various programs that he has implemented to insuring

         18  that people get an equal opportunity in this City.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: What I am asking

         20  is, this is the question, do you have the answer of

         21  what the photo looked like in '02, January 1st of

         22   '02?  And what it looks like now?  And can you tell

         23  me what the difference has been since we have taken

         24  office, since we know that the Mayor has always been

         25  paying attention and always concerned about this and
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          2  spoke out about this, when he was running for

          3  office?  So, has there been an improvement in that

          4  picture?

          5                 MR. CROWELL: To the extent that you

          6  are looking for statistics, I do not have statistics

          7  with me.  I came here to discuss the legal merits of

          8  the bill today.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Well, I would

         10  ask the Chair to ask you to have those the next time

         11  we have this follow up hearing. I do not think that

         12  is really germane to the dialog, here, would you not

         13  think?

         14                 MR. CROWELL: If that, if Council

         15  wanted statistics, we should have been asked for

         16  them.  I did not come here to discuss statistics.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I appreciate

         18  that.  So we are going to ask for them now.  We are

         19  going to ask for them now, for the next time we

         20  follow up on this.

         21                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you.  I

         23  want to recognize Mayor Dinkins has arrived.  We

         24  appreciate his participation.  We are going to have

         25  a final question from Council Member, Peter Vallone.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you Mr.

          3  Crowell for your testimony.  And I for one, do

          4  applaud Mayor Bloomberg for the efforts he has made

          5  with regards to diversity.

          6                 I would like to, I am waiting for you

          7  to defend the fire department, but since you have

          8  not, let me do that.  Everyone up here has said that

          9  the fire department is ridiculous, and we all know

         10  that.  I do not know that, okay?  Because I was here

         11  at the hearing when they testified, as were many of

         12  the other council members, when they had a chance to

         13  be questioned and cross examined, and their

         14  undisputed, unchallenged testimony, was that the

         15  percentage of blacks, who are taking the test to be

         16  fire fighters, was exactly the same as the

         17  percentage of blacks who were being hired.  That was

         18  undisputed and unchallenged when they were here.  Do

         19  we need to have more minorities take the test?  Yes.

         20    Is that a racist policy that they are not?  No.

         21  They are not here today and they are being blasted.

         22  When they were here, nobody challenged that

         23  testimony.  I would just like to point that out for

         24  the record.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Just want to
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          2  make it clear that what we are talking about is

          3  effects, results.  And the results of, all the

          4  efforts of the Mayor, particularly with regard to

          5  the fire department, is that, no matter how

          6  aggressive we are resulting only in a two percent

          7  and we see that problem throughout the system, and

          8  this is an effort to provide some sort of systemic

          9  approach, proactive comprehensive approach, that

         10  anticipates these problems, and prevents lawsuits,

         11  and prevents frivolous such actions, and most

         12  importantly, gives the people of the City, a sense

         13  that they are included and not excluded.

         14                 Thank you very much for your

         15  testimony.  We are now going to change our schedule

         16  a little bit again, because Mayor Dinkins has

         17  arrived and we would like to accommodate his

         18  schedule. Please come forward, Mayor Dinkins.  You

         19  may proceed when you are ready.  You have to turn it

         20  on.  When it is green, it is on.

         21                 MAYOR DINKINS: Oh, I see, sorry about

         22  that.  I have been away.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Welcome home.

         24                 MAYOR DINKINS: Fourteen years ago, I

         25  signed into law one of the most progressive pieces
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          2  of human rights legislation in our nation.  That

          3  law, Introductory 465A, which dramatically over

          4  hauled its predecessor, was introduced at my

          5  request, and both the council and the administration

          6  worked judiciously to see it through to passage.  I

          7  take this opportunity to thank the council for since

          8  expanding the protection under that law to

          9  additional groups, including persons who may suffer

         10  discrimination based on their actual or perceived

         11  gender identity, and victims of domestic violence.

         12                 Today, I am pleased to support

         13  another human rights law, Intro 512A, 512, a piece

         14  of legislation that not only extends our human

         15  rights legacy, but again, expands on it.  I commend

         16  Council Members Bill Perkins for introducing this

         17  bill and Governmental Operations Committee Members

         18  Christine Quinn, Leroy Comrie, and their colleagues

         19  for joining in the sponsorship.

         20                 Intro 512 is timely, as numerous

         21  reports and studies issued by prestigious research

         22  bodies surface, pointing to a variety of inequities

         23  in the way the City conducts some significant parts

         24  of its business.  Two such studies, both

         25  commissioned by the council and released in the past
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          2  few months, well illustrate the problem.  The City

          3  of New York Disparity Report found vast disparities

          4  between the number of women and minority- owned

          5  businesses eligible to take on the City contracts,

          6  and the number of City contracts awarded to them.

          7  The Food Stamp Enrollment and Growing Hunger in New

          8  York City Report, revealed that hundreds of

          9  thousands of eligible City residents, face

         10  significant hurdles to obtaining food stamps, even

         11  as the population of those at risk of hunger has

         12  increased.  I know that our great City can do

         13  better, and we must do better.

         14                 Intro 512 asks that the City be

         15  proactive in its charge to prevent discrimination

         16  and promote equality.  And that we begin that

         17  process by assessing the City's own performance.

         18  While I agree with Mayor Bloomberg that the City

         19  spends too many tax dollars on preventable lawsuits,

         20  I believe that identifying potentially harmful

         21  policies in advance, could have prevented, and has a

         22  potential to prevent, many such lawsuits.

         23                 I also agree with Mayor Bloomberg

         24  that accountability in government depends upon the

         25  collection of solid data, and the full flow of
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          2  information on the City's performance. And the

          3  bill's authors intend that Intro 512 would promote

          4  the use of data for assessing that performance.   I

          5  believe that New Yorkers should have more input,

          6  that is now the case in shaping the policies that

          7  affect them, and I applaud the measures for informed

          8  community involvement that are part of this bill.

          9                 The Human Rights Law, now on the

         10  books, does not mandate that City Departments

         11  routinely assess their performance with respect to

         12  ensuring that their missions are discharged

         13  equitably.  Rather, it provides redress for

         14  discrimination, after the fact.  While this legal

         15  tool is essential, Intro 512 offers an additional

         16  tool for addressing rights violations and promoting

         17  equality, by imposing an affirmative obligation on

         18  the government to prevent discrimination, before it

         19  occurs.  Intro 512 asks that every City department

         20  conduct a human impact assessment of its mission,

         21  with an eye to preventing discrimination and

         22  promoting equality.

         23                 Litigation has been indispensable in

         24  the fight against discrimination, and has a proven

         25  value as a deterrent to discriminatory acts.  It is,
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          2  however, a costly and time consuming mechanism.  At

          3  the end of the day, a victim of discrimination may

          4  be offered a monetary award for damages.  But no

          5  amount of money can compensate for the psychological

          6  damage.  Intro 512 asks that we take steps to

          7  safeguard the rights of the people of this City,

          8  rather than seek remedies once the damage is done.

          9  It asks that we anticipate, rather than litigate.

         10                 A City that prides itself on

         11  openness, cannot tolerate entrenched inequities.  As

         12  has often been the case in the past, New Yorkers

         13  have been called upon to set the standard for

         14  progressive government.  When the government fails

         15  to adequately provide basic and equal opportunities

         16  to all its residents, everyone pays the price.  And

         17  inequity, in whatever form, is too dear a price for

         18  this City to pay.  Intro 512 will move us one more

         19  step towards making New York a truly open City.

         20                 I am pleased to have been asked to

         21  lend my support to this effort.  It is timely, it is

         22  innovative, and it will better serve the needs of

         23  all New Yorkers.  Thank you for listening. Thank

         24  you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very
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          2  much, Mr. Mayor, for your time and your continued

          3  interest in our City, and in making sure that our

          4  government is one that is fair to all, and takes

          5  every effort to eliminate those instances of

          6  unfairness, particularly in terms of discrimination.

          7    I know that when you were the Mayor, there was a

          8  diligent effort, a proactive effort on your part, to

          9  guarantee that there would be an affirmative

         10  approach to contracting, particularly when it came

         11  to women and minorities. Would you talk a little bit

         12  about that?  Then would you also give us a sense of

         13  where --

         14                 MAYOR DINKINS: I would be pleased to.

         15    First let me acknowledge the assistance and

         16  support we got from the city council, lead by

         17  Speaker Peter Vallone at that time, not to be

         18  confused with --  I called my son once at a work

         19  place, and his name is the same as mine, and I asked

         20  for David Dinkins and the fellow said, he is sitting

         21  right here.  And I said, no man, I am the original.

         22  So, the original Peter Vallone, I want to

         23  acknowledge support that he and the council gave us

         24  at that time.

         25                 When we came into office, we

                                                            46

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  recognized that for contracts, municipal contracts,

          3  for goods, services, and construction, that women

          4  and minority- owned firms got a partial, I think two

          5  or three percent, of the billions of dollars.  So we

          6  set about to craft a plan that would withstand

          7  attack, constitutional attack, and Peter Sherwood

          8  was our corporation counsel.  I might add, the first

          9  black ever to hold that position, and he and George

         10  Daniels, who is my counsel, and Wally Ford, who is a

         11  Commissioner of Youth Services, they set about

         12  working, Business Services, they set about working

         13  on this, and we came up with the plan that we would

         14  offer a preference in bidding, to those who

         15  registered and could show that they were within this

         16  area.  You could not have some black person fronting

         17  a white firm, for instance.  Or some males who would

         18  have a woman fronting their firm, it had to in fact

         19  be, and you had to register is advance.  And this

         20  worked.  And we left office, we were at about 17

         21  percent.  I might add, that we were condemned in the

         22  beginning and throughout the effort, and during the

         23  campaign that ensued, as I sought re- election, it

         24  was called quotas, it was called set asides, without

         25  engaging in a debate or discussion on whether or not
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          2  such things are bad, I can argue that, that is not

          3  necessarily the case.  But we achieve success, and

          4  to this very day I encounter people, woman and

          5  minorities, who say they benefited from the action

          6  that we took way back then.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: And, do you have

          8  statistics on the top of your head as to what type

          9  of progress was made?   And then would you sort of

         10  share with us the fate of your progressive efforts.

         11                 MAYOR DINKINS: Well, it was done with

         12  an executive order, really, and it was not

         13  legislation.  And Mayor Giuliani, during the

         14  campaign, and then when he took office, he denounced

         15  this as quotas, and it was done away with.  So, as

         16  far as I have been able to determine, the progress

         17  has not continued, and it is unfortunate that is the

         18  case, because women and minority- owned firms make

         19  up a tremendous percentage, and there are those who,

         20  I believe, are eligible for this kind of work, if

         21  they were given an opportunity.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Sometimes

         23  executive orders can be very, very powerful and

         24  progressive, in terms of addressing problems.

         25  Unfortunately, as you exemplified, such orders have
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          2  become subject to the good intentions of the

          3  executive that is in office.  In recognition of

          4  that, this is why this legislation was thought to be

          5  important because it, the practices that this

          6  legislation calls for, are not subject to the whims

          7  of the individual in the executive office.  Do you

          8  think there is value in that approach?

          9                 MAYOR DINKINS: I know that there is,

         10  and I commend you and those who support this effort,

         11  and it is my hope that the entire council will be

         12  behind you in this effort.  It is important.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Let me just also

         14  sadly report to you, that the council's study on

         15  diversity in contracting, revealed that since you

         16  left, worse than the progress not going forward,

         17  that in fact, we went backwards.  That in fact, your

         18  efforts, not only were stopped, but the clock was

         19  turned back.  And that is another great concern that

         20  we have, and this by the way, does not even totally

         21  take into account the record of this present

         22  administration.  But it is clear that the pattern is

         23  not going in the direction that we want, and that

         24  while you may have been in the proventive (sic.)

         25  Mode, the proactive mode, since then we have been in
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          2  the sort of, reactive mode, and the problem, you

          3  know, has gotten worse.  And I am just wondering

          4  what your thinking is about that, in terms of this

          5  particular piece of legislation?

          6                 MAYOR DINKINS: Well, I have

          7  recognized for a long time, and I do not think this

          8  is a profound observation that is peculiar to me.  I

          9  think that many have made the observation that we

         10  can do better, and many of the firms that are women

         11  and minority- owned firms, are small businesses.

         12  Small businesses produce more jobs than anything

         13  else.  And so it is desirable from many, many

         14  fronts, aside from the fact that it is fair, and

         15  just, and right.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: You have been

         17  the Mayor, and why would a Mayor have objections to

         18  a bill such as this, particularly in terms of what

         19  one might call the law of Mayoral Prerogatives.  I

         20  mean, I know you have not, I do not want to put you

         21  in the place of giving a legal definition, or

         22  opinion, per se on this, but I am just concerned

         23  that the administration is raising the idea that it

         24  steps on the Mayor's prerogatives.

         25                 MAYOR DINKINS: Well, I suppose all
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          2  executives rather zealously guard their own

          3  prerogatives, as does the legislature and the

          4  judiciary, there is no question that they do that.

          5  I do not know what the attitude of this

          6  administration is, I have not discussed it with

          7  Mayor Bloomberg.  I know that, in general, the prior

          8  administration had an entirely different attitude,

          9  as I described.  I do not know the answer to your

         10  question.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         12  much.  Council Member Reed.  Reed, is that your

         13  name?  I am sorry, what is your name, sir?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Mr. Mayor, thank

         15  you for being here with us today.  It is very nice

         16  to see you.

         17                 MAYOR DINKINS: Thank you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I remember when

         19  I first came into office and you told me, gave me

         20  some sound advice.  I am not going to repeat all of

         21  it, but I think that both Council Member Perkins and

         22  I were given that.  Part of it was to stick to what

         23  it was we were standing here to do, and I think that

         24  is what this bill is about.  And I know that you

         25  have tried to stick to this cause of equity in the
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          2  City, and I appreciate it.

          3                 Could you just tell us what is the

          4  real structure that is involved with municipal

          5  employment in the sense that, what can individual

          6  commissioners do if they want to, within their own

          7  agencies, to try to -- if a commissioner sees an

          8  imbalance anywhere, what could she do if she wants

          9  to?  And to what extent typically, does the role of

         10  the Mayor's office play in terms of employment,

         11  particularly around senior staff?  I am not talking

         12  about the union issues, I am just talking about

         13  discretionary positions.

         14                 MAYOR DINKINS: I believe that, at

         15  least the way I attempted to run things, was to

         16  select commissioners that I thought were equal to

         17  the job, and to let them do the job.  They knew what

         18  my posture was, my philosophy was, that was real

         19  clear from day one.  And I hired people, appointed

         20  people, who were generally in synch with me.  And it

         21  seemed to work pretty well along those lines.  I

         22  think it is important that, as I am sure Mayor

         23  Bloomberg and Mayor Giuliani and Mayor Koch and all

         24  the other Mayors would remind their commissions,

         25  that they did not get their jobs through the New
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          2  York Times, however.  And so that they would have to

          3  be, they would have to be concerned with City Hall,

          4  as it were.  But I do not see that as a problem, not

          5  if the City administration wants to achieve the same

          6  kinds of things.  If a commissioner notices that

          7  there are not many contracts going, that they are

          8  permitted to let, not going to minority and women-

          9  owned firms, for instance, they can take some steps.

         10    One to let people know that they are available.

         11  Very often, folks just do not know that they can

         12  compete for some of these things.  In terms of

         13  employment, and staffing of agencies, civil service

         14  plays a role, as you know, unions play a role, and

         15  there I think, you have to work at it, and I think

         16  that those things can be done.  I know that we do

         17  not have as many in the fire department and the

         18  police department, perhaps as we would like, but I

         19  know that Ray Kelly, for instance, used to go into

         20  black churches.  I did not ask him to go, he thought

         21  that it was a good idea.  Indeed, it was.

         22                 So, I think there are all kinds of

         23  things that can be done.  You can use ingenuity and

         24  what not, but you have to first want to achieve the

         25  goal.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 MAYOR DINKINS: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Let me ask you,

          6  what negative impacts do you think this legislation

          7  can have on behalf of the people of the City of New

          8  York?

          9                 MAYOR DINKINS: I do not know that it

         10  will have any negative impacts.  I am confident that

         11  there is some Fiscal implications, and I must

         12  confess, I have not analyzed it and studied it

         13  sufficiently, deeply, to respond intelligently to

         14  that. But not all things can be measured in dollars.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Well, lawsuits

         16  can be measured in dollars, and as we know --

         17                 MAYOR DINKINS: Well, that is true.

         18  We --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: -- And that is

         20  what we are trying to avoid here.  I just want to

         21  take the opportunity to make that point.

         22                 MAYOR DINKINS: You are absolutely

         23  right.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: And that is part

         25  of your testimony, which is that the Mayor has been
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          2  very, very much on the campaign to minimize

          3  lawsuits, and we believe that this particular bill

          4  has that potential and in fact, just this week it

          5  was pointed out, you know, that there has been an

          6  award of $50 thousand dollars to a fireman who was

          7  discriminated against in terms of a promotional

          8  opportunity.  And there are many, many such lawsuits

          9  that the administration is handling right now, that

         10  I am sure will dwarf this one, when they are

         11  ultimately finalized.  So from that point of view, I

         12  agree with you that, there are impacts, but I think

         13  there will be, more so, from the point of view of

         14  the lawsuits, as well as point of view, of the toll

         15  on the sense of what our City is about, the sense of

         16  dignity and respect that all people will lose if

         17  they are not included in the opportunities that the

         18  City has to offer.

         19                 MAYOR DINKINS: I agree.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Do you, have you

         21  had a chance to look at this bill, in comparison to

         22  other agencies, such as the Human Rights Commission

         23  of Equal Employment Protection Commission that are

         24  in operation to address these needs, but again, seem

         25  to address them after the fact?
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          2                 MAYOR DINKINS: I know that generally,

          3  the laws on the books, provide that if you

          4  discriminate, if you fail to do this, that or the

          5  other, than there are penalties that will obtain.

          6  And that is a good thing.  Obviously, we would be

          7  much better if we never had to impose those kinds of

          8  laws in the first place, that is, the provisions of

          9  them.  If we would, and incidently, let me add here,

         10  too, that it is conceivable that in many instances,

         11  or certainly in some instances, we have disparities

         12  that perhaps are not intentional, but the effect is

         13  there, nonetheless.  The National Urban League

         14  annually does a report on the state of Black

         15  America, and it came out in the last two or three

         16  days, that while I have not studied it completely, I

         17  do know that the circumstances of the past,

         18  continue, widening gaps in disparities, in

         19  employment, and such.  And so we do need to address

         20  these things.  And I have always maintained that

         21  those who are conservatives, Fiscal conservatives,

         22  who are not necessarily social conservatives, but

         23  the Fiscal conservatives should join with people

         24  who, like those who support this legislation,

         25  because in the final analysis, it is cost effective.

                                                            56

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2    It cost less to educate than to incarcerate, we

          3  have said for decades, for generations.  And there

          4  are many examples of how an expenditure of resources

          5  now, can save in the final analysis.  And as you

          6  point out, Mr. Chairman, the monies that the City is

          7  forced to pay in settlement of lawsuits, is great.

          8  We read it every day in the newspapers.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         10  much, Mr. Mayor, for your testimony and again, for

         11  your service as our Mayor and your continued

         12  participation in the civic life of New York, and it

         13  is a great honor for this council to have you come

         14  down here and give up your time, and help us

         15  continue to provide good government for the people

         16  of the City of New York.  You may not be doing it

         17  this time as the Mayor, officially, but the kind of

         18  leadership that you are helping us with today, is

         19  the kind of leadership that surely is Mayoral, and

         20  which we would like to see in those who sit in that

         21  seat today, and in the future, as well.

         22                 MAYOR DINKINS: Well, Mr. Chairman, I

         23  thank you for your generous comments.  I am fond of

         24  saying to audiences that now that I have been

         25  elected to private citizen, I go where I wish. And I
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          2  am very pleased to be here.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          4  much.  We are going to take a brief recess.

          5                 The Committee on Governmental

          6  Operations hearing concerning Introduction 512, the

          7  Human Rights and Government Operations Audit Law,

          8  will now resume, with a panel that consists of

          9  Rhonda Copelon, Director Of International Women's

         10  Human Rights Law Clinic, CUNY Law School, Martha

         11  Davis, Professor at Northeastern Law School, and

         12  Esmeralda Simmons, Director Medgar Evers Center for

         13  Law and Social Justice.  Is that panel ready? Okay.

         14  Then I am going to have to move to the next panel.

         15                 Panel number two, Susan Strum,

         16  Professor Columbia University Law School, Yolande

         17  Marlow, Director Officer of Minority Concerns New

         18  Jersey Supreme Court, and Betty Powell, Betty Powell

         19  Associates.

         20                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Witnesses,

         21  do you swear and affirm that the testimony that you

         22  are about to give will be the truth, the whole

         23  truth, and nothing but the truth?  You will

         24  need to push the button.

         25                 MS. STURM: I do.
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          2                 MS. MARLOW: I do.

          3                 MS. POWELL: I do.

          4                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: All right,

          5  you may proceed.

          6                 MS. STURM: Thank you very much.

          7                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Please

          8  identify yourself before you give your testimony.

          9                 MS. STURM: Certainly.  My name is

         10  Susan Sturm.  I am the George M. Jaffin Professor of

         11  Law and Social Responsibility at Columbia Law

         12  School.  I have been studying, writing and

         13  researching about remedying employment

         14  discrimination for about 20 years.

         15                 Thank you very much for the

         16  opportunity to speak to the value of the Human

         17  Rights in Government Audit Law.  This legislation,

         18  as you have heard this morning, offers a proactive

         19  approach to building inclusive government

         20  institutions and practices.  My remarks will address

         21  why such an approach is needed, and how it has

         22  worked in other settings to improve institutions,

         23  also as it increases access.

         24                 The project of pursuing equity has

         25  reached a new stage.  Although overt discrimination
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          2  certainly persists, racial and gender inequality

          3  often results from practices that depart from these

          4  first generation patterns of bias.  Second

          5  generation problems involve cognitive bias,

          6  structures of decision making, and patterns of

          7  interaction.  Research demonstrates, for example,

          8  that men and women with identical credentials and

          9  performance, are evaluated differently, with both

         10  men and women rating women's performance lower.

         11  Glenn Lowry's recent work, In the Anatomy of Racial

         12  Inequality, summarizes similar research on the

         13  effects of race.  Social practices over time,

         14  produce unequal participation, access, and

         15  opportunity for women and people of color.  Micro

         16  inequities are often small episodes that occur in

         17  the course of every day experiences and

         18  interchanges, which add up over time to produce

         19  large status differences.  These patterns are often

         20  visible only in the aggregate.

         21                 This bias producing dynamic,

         22  continues in part because decision makers and

         23  community members, may be unaware of these overall

         24  patterns, which we also heard about this morning.

         25  They may also need better information to understand
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          2  why these patterns persist, and how best to address

          3  the problems they signal. These actors, community

          4  members, and government leaders, department heads,

          5  frequently lack adequate occasions, and adequate

          6  incentives to undertake this analysis and this

          7  problem solving process.

          8                 Change often occurs when people in

          9  different locations start to ask what, why, and how

         10  questions.  What are the overall consequences of our

         11  decisions for concerns about fairness and efficacy?

         12  If problematic problems show up, why are they

         13  occurring?  How can these problems best be

         14  addressed, learning from others who have

         15  successfully grappled with the similar challenges?

         16  How effective are the remedies in addressing these

         17  identified problems?

         18                 This legislation would help

         19  institutionalize this kind of public problem

         20  solving.  It emphasizes increasing agency's

         21  knowledge and capacity.  Where are the problems?

         22  Why are they occurring?  And what can be done about

         23  them?  It harnesses the participation and expertise

         24  of City personnel, community advocates and citizens.

         25    This provides the varied knowledge and incentives
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          2  needed to identify and remedy second generation

          3  forms of bias.

          4                 This approach has worked in other

          5  settings, both public and private.  For example, the

          6  National Science Foundation, a government agency

          7  committed to the advancement of science, has

          8  recently undertaken just this approach, to increase

          9  the participation of women in academic science.

         10  Larry Summers could learn a thing or two.  Adopting

         11  a deliberative research base problem solving

         12  approach from the outset, the National Science

         13  Foundation's Advance Program, and I quote, "is

         14  designed to catalyze change that will transform

         15  academic environments in ways that enhance the

         16  participation and the advancement of women in

         17  science and engineering".  NSF exclusively uses

         18  similar approaches, data gathering, analysis and

         19  self study, to identify problems, to find solutions,

         20  and implement initiatives.

         21                 Deloitte and Touche, America's third

         22  largest Accounting Tax and Management Consulting

         23  Firm, used a similar approach, in implementing a

         24  major women's initiative, that dramatically

         25  increased women's advancement in the company, and
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          2  reduced the turn over rate of women in particular,

          3  and employees, in general.  The firm accomplished

          4  this, by forming on going participatory task forces,

          5  with responsibility for determining the nature and

          6  the cause of a gender gap in promotion and turn

          7  over, making recommendations to change the

          8  conditions underlying these patterns, developing

          9  systems to address these problems, and to make

         10  future patterns transparent, and then importantly,

         11  monitoring the results.

         12                 The Judicial Bias Task Forces are a

         13  third are in which this problem solving data driven,

         14  participatory approach has been used to good effect.

         15    And we will hear more about that from another

         16  panelist.

         17                 These three examples offer useful

         18  models for undertaking constructive and long term

         19  change, that both increases equity, and improves the

         20  overall quality of governments within these

         21  initiatives, and within these institutions.  They

         22  share several important strengths.  They are

         23  proactive.  They increase the knowledge base about

         24  problems and their solutions.  They create occasions

         25  for learning about these problems and developing
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          2  effective responses, and they forge working

          3  relationships among responsible officials, community

          4  activists, and those affected by these practices.

          5                 New York City has before an

          6  opportunity to take the lead in building on these

          7  innovative approaches, to improve the quality of

          8  life for all of its citizens.  Thank you.

          9                 YOLANDE MARLOW: I wish to extend my

         10  appreciation to the committee for inviting me to

         11  present testimony at this historic hearing.  My name

         12  is Yolande Marlow.  I am Manger of a Minority

         13  Concerns Unit at the Administrative Office of the

         14  Courts in Trenton, New Jersey.

         15                 Beginning in 1983, the New Jersey

         16  Judiciary initiated a program to rid the court

         17  system of all vestiges of bias and discrimination,

         18  rooted in racial and ethnic prejudice, ignorance, or

         19  insensitivity.  This system- wide initiative began

         20  as, and remains, a comprehensive effort, blanketing

         21  the entire State judiciary branch, including all

         22  dimensions of escort operations.

         23                 The predicate for establishing a

         24  dedicated entity to oversee the court's efforts to

         25  eliminate discrimination in the judiciary, is the
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          2  Supreme Court's stance, that eliminating

          3  discrimination, is its responsibility.  The court

          4  acknowledge that discrimination in America has

          5  systemic roots, and that it is a fact of life.

          6  Therefore, it is unrealistic to believe that given

          7  its historic roots, it can be eliminated with a mere

          8  stroke of the pen. Its elimination requires

          9  continued exposure, hard work, strong leadership,

         10  and unflagging determination to succeed, and the

         11  perseverance to keep trying.

         12                 In 1992, the Supreme Court Task Force

         13  on Minority Concerns published its final report.

         14  Immediately following the public release of the

         15  report, the court unanimously approved the

         16  establishment of a permanent oversight committee to

         17  monitor, over see, advocate for, chart the

         18  judiciary's progress, and make further

         19  recommendations to the court, including

         20  recommendations for additional research.  The court

         21  appointed the members of the Standing Supreme Court

         22  Committee on Minority Concerns.

         23                 In 1993, the court published its

         24  Action Plan on Minority Concerns, and commented on

         25  each of the recommendations contained in the final
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          2  report.  The Action Plan on Minority Concerns is the

          3  court's system- wide blue print for implementing the

          4  53 court approved recommendations.

          5                 The court pursued a two pronged

          6  approach to assuring effective oversight,

          7  coordination, and implementation of its Action Plan.

          8    The first prong is the State Level Supreme Court

          9  Committee on Minority Concerns, and the second prong

         10  is the vicinage level Advisory Committees on

         11  Minority Concerns, in all 15 of the administrative

         12  court districts.

         13                 The support of the top leaders of the

         14  court system is essential.  In fact, even before the

         15  formal publication of the 1992 report, they began to

         16  address some of the problems that had been

         17  identified.  For example, in the 1980's, there were

         18  few minority law clerks being hired, and then Chief

         19  Justice Robert N. Wilentz, sent out letters to all

         20  Superior Court Judges, urging them to broaden the

         21  applicant pool of law clerks, to embrace more

         22  minorities and women.  He set a ten percent hiring

         23  goal.  Efforts to diversify the pool of law clerks

         24  continues, and in November of 2004, 22 percent of

         25  the 468 new law clerk hires, were racial and ethnic
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          2  minorities.

          3                 It is also noteworthy, that is 1988,

          4  the Administrative Office of the Courts created and

          5  staffed a new unit, the Minority Concerns Office,

          6  with the expressed purpose of working with the

          7  Supreme Court Committee on Minority Concerns.  At

          8  that time, the unit consisted of a full time

          9  secretary and professional. Today the unit has

         10  expanded to a three person unit consisting of the

         11  Minority Concerns Executive, an administrative

         12  assistant, and a full time secretary.

         13                 Throughout this 22 year initiative,

         14  there has been strong support and leadership from

         15  the Chief Justice, the Administrative Director, and

         16  top level court administrators and managers.  This

         17  top down leadership buy in, combined with the

         18  leadership of the local assignment judges, sends a

         19  strong message to court employees and the legal

         20  community, that fairness equals justice, and

         21  continuing efforts to deliver and enhance the

         22  quality of court services, to all of the citizens of

         23  New Jersey, has been, and shall remain, important

         24  issues in the New Jersey judiciary.

         25                 Equally noteworthy, is the court's
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          2  abiding commitment to provide the necessary funding

          3  and staff support to this effort.  All of the staff

          4  and the Minority Concerns Unit, are full time

          5  administrative office of the court employees, as are

          6  the six individuals who provide staff support to the

          7  five sub committees of the 41 member Supreme Court

          8  Community on Minority Concerns.  Additionally, each

          9  of the 15 Assignment Judges, also appoint staff to

         10  provide the administrative support to their

         11  respective local Committees on Minority Concerns.

         12  The staff support does not require additional new

         13  hires, rather, staff with a range of expertise in

         14  various court divisions, are appointed to the

         15  Supreme Court Committee and the local vicinage

         16  advisory committees.  Other in kind support

         17  includes, funding for meeting costs, training,

         18  meals, report publication, public educational

         19  seminars, copying costs, and various other projects

         20  such as Law Day.

         21                 Another hallmark of the New Jersey

         22  model, is that the court exercises due diligence and

         23  vigilance, in ensuring that the recommendations are

         24  implemented.  To this end, the Committee on Minority

         25  Concerns reports to the Supreme Court every two
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          2  years on the progress.

          3                 In conclusion, the New Jersey

          4  experience has taught us, that it clearly

          5  articulated comprehensive approach, such as that

          6  developed by the New York City Human Rights

          7  Initiative, is the most effective and efficient way

          8  to address racial and ethnic bias in our court

          9  system.

         10                 I hope that you have found these

         11  remarks beneficial, as you embark on this journey.

         12  I am reminded of the words of Chief Justice Deborah

         13  T. Poritz, when she spoke in March 2003, at the 20th

         14  Anniversary of Minority Concerns.  Chief Justice

         15  Poritz noted, and I quote, "Self examination and

         16  change are not easy. Maintaining the status quo is

         17  certainly the path of least resistance.  Even when

         18  it is wrong to do so.  And change can be criticized

         19  as too fast, or too slow, too much, or not enough."

         20                 I commend you for your leadership,

         21  your vision, your courage and undertaking this

         22  daunting, yet critical, mission.  I have also

         23  provided to the Commissioners, a time line, a

         24  Fordham Law Journal on the New Jersey's Ombudsman

         25  Program, and the Supreme Court's Action Plan on
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          2  Minority Concerns that was published in 1993.  Thank

          3  you.

          4                 MS. POWELL: Good morning, my name is

          5  Betty Powell. I am Founder and Director of Betty

          6  Powell Associates, a firm that I will describe in

          7  the context of my testimony.

          8                 I want to first thank Council Member

          9  Bill Perkins for sponsoring this historic Human

         10  Rights Legislation, and all of the members of the

         11  Government Operations Committee for inviting me to

         12  speak on behalf of Intro. 512.

         13                 I particularly welcome the

         14  opportunity to address this legislative body,

         15  because you are the ones I have been waiting for.

         16  As the Founder and Director of Betty Powell

         17  Associates, a consulting and training firm,

         18  specializing in multi racial, multi cultural

         19  organizational development, I have been privileged

         20  to assist a broad range of organizations and

         21  businesses across this country and internationally,

         22  to become more inclusive and more highly

         23  functioning, diverse institutions.  These have

         24  included universities and schools, hospitals and

         25  other health service providers, law firms, community
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          2  agencies and religious groups, large and small not

          3  for profits, and of course State and municipal

          4  agencies.  For almost 20 years, I have been doing

          5  this work. Some would say fairly successfully, but I

          6  have yet to be satisfied or convinced, that all of

          7  the work that I and legions of colleagues have put

          8  into diversity training and coaching racial and

          9  gender justice initiatives, and all of the millions

         10  of dollars that have been invested in these

         11  endeavors, have brought us nearly as far as we could

         12  have come, ought to have come, since 1964, and the

         13  passage of that landmark piece of legislation.

         14                 Whether it was in the New York State

         15  Department of Education, or Saint John's University,

         16  New York City law firms or its Health and Hospital

         17  Corporation, we have always found good people only

         18  too willing to engage in deep consciousness raising,

         19  and rigorous self examination as regard to power and

         20  privilege, equity and balances based on race and

         21  gender.  And on the heals of that, would follow

         22  institutional analysis, and tentative or elaborate

         23  plans of action for change.  But always, always no

         24  matter how courageous or progressive the leadership,

         25  the staff, the community, the congregation, there
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          2  exists this limitation of assumptions about what

          3  deep social change really is, and can do. Why?

          4  Because training and education about power, politics

          5  and inequity in the work place, and the absence of

          6  linkages to concrete policies and deep structural

          7  outcomes within the institution, is doomed to

          8  relative or absolute failure.  People know this

          9  intuitively, even when they cannot, or dare not

         10  speak it.

         11                 You, members of this committee, and

         12  the entire City council, can turn this whole

         13  doomsday scenario upside down and right side up

         14  again for all those who work for and are served by

         15  the municipality of New York City.  This

         16  legislation, Intro 512, the Human Rights and

         17  Government Operations Audit Law, is the vehicle to

         18  address the connections between individual

         19  consciousness, interpersonal dynamics and structural

         20  inequality in the form of often unintentional, but

         21  nonetheless damaging, discriminatory policies,

         22  practices and procedures.  This approach to the

         23  problem is not without success for precedent, as you

         24  know. The city of San Francisco has preceded you in

         25  this bold step.  Yet, you are still the one that we
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          2  in the Big Apple have been waiting for.  Actually,

          3  in reality, communities, businesses and

          4  organizations across this country, are seeking

          5  guidance, models, policies and practices, which will

          6  truly support them in ensuring the inclusion of, and

          7  I quote, "People from diverse cultural, racial

          8  ethnic backgrounds and social groups that would

          9  include women and girls, as stakeholders with

         10  legitimate claim to a share in the community or

         11  institution's mission, work, responsibilities and

         12  benefits", end quote.  Bailey Jackson, University of

         13  Massachusetts researcher and scholar, framed that

         14  concept, as a guide for our justice and diversity

         15  work, in 1968.

         16                 Poised at the beginning of the 21st

         17  Century, I hold strongly to the belief that

         18  education and awareness training and coaching alone,

         19  are not sufficient to achieve this most laudable

         20  goal.  Despite historic legislation, admirable

         21  social advances that have gone before us, and all

         22  the diversity training in the world, good Governance

         23  cannot be blind to the truth, that on a daily basis,

         24  we are all reminded that racism, sexism, oppression

         25  of all forms, persist in our communities, in our
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          2  corporations, in our institutions and in the day to

          3  day workings of every single agency of our beloved

          4  City.

          5                 In the case of our culturally complex

          6  and very sophisticated Metropolis, political will

          7  must be anchored in place, committed to

          8  institutionalizing, not just mechanisms for

          9  assessment, but values for us to live by.  Not just

         10  legal redress, but restorative and distributed

         11  justice, to be transformed by. What this law will

         12  do, that goes far beyond the constraints that I have

         13  identified in even the most successful training and

         14  education initiatives, is to rupture the structures

         15  of racialized patriarchies, within all City

         16  governance.  I mean, can we even hear it?  I need to

         17  repeat that.  What this law will do, is to rupture

         18  the structures of racialized patriarchies within all

         19  City governance.  As opposed to waiting for the

         20  diversity training, or at the other end, the

         21  lawsuit, to illuminate the unequal relationship that

         22  women and peoples of color have to power, to

         23  privilege, and possibilities, as compared with men

         24  or white people. You, committee members, get to say

         25  up front, we know that.  We know that these
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          2  inequities exist.  They are as much a part of our

          3  nation's and our City's legacy as "We the People..."

          4                 You have before you, a very powerful,

          5  a very creative tool in Intro 512.  With it, your

          6  chief legacy to the future could be to move human

          7  progress towards equality of opportunity, a

          8  privilege and power widely distributed to a whole

          9  other level.  In place of the endless posing and

         10  reposing of the questions, acknowledging and

         11  rediscovering over and over again the existence of

         12  racist and sexist practice and policies, in our

         13  lived lives, what we need to do, this law enables

         14  you to say, is to look with unblinking candor, at

         15  all our City agency's programs and policies,

         16  employment practices, budget allocations, service

         17  delivery, et cetera, et cetera, ascertain through

         18  audit and analysis, not whether or not, but how the

         19  racial and gender justice gaps show up in our City's

         20  work and work places.  And then rigorously support,

         21  historically, unparalleled, proactive, structural

         22  solutions.  It is within this context, that the

         23  multiple layers of education and training in the

         24  valuing of human difference, would make all the

         25  sense in the world, and would have the potential for
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          2  being transformative.

          3                 At a recent conference on

          4  reparations, one of the speakers observed, that in

          5  spite of all the madness that surrounds us, there is

          6  a new breed, quote, "there is a new breed of public

          7  servant on the Frontlines today."  And actually, in

          8  that moment, he was referring to Council Member

          9  Perkins and Council Member Robert Brown, and their

         10  work on reparations.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I believe at

         12  that time, it was Robert Jackson.

         13                 MS. POWELL: Robert Jackson.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Yes, and you are

         15  talking about the Chicago conference.

         16                 MS. POWELL: Yes, yes, yes, yes.

         17                 But in my view, this new breed

         18  includes all of you. Because in precious few

         19  democratic spaces this morning, our elected

         20  officials deliberating upon what kind of

         21  authentically democratic culture and all inclusive

         22  society we want to build, and how to proudly hold

         23  government accountable for helping to create it.

         24                 Intro 512 is the history making tool

         25  you have within your grasp to do just that.
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          2                 In conclusion, Victor Hugo once said

          3  that there is nothing so powerful in all the world,

          4  than an idea whose time has come.  Civil Rights, as

          5  an idea, a vision, a value worked very well for us

          6  in the 60's and 70's and even into the 80's and

          7  90's.  The 21st Century belongs to Human Rights.

          8  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         10  much.  Very well said, very much appreciated.  I

         11  just want to ask one quick question for each of you

         12  to respond to as you wish, if you wish.  The

         13  question relates to institution discrimination, that

         14  does not necessarily speak to individuals in the

         15  sense of what they bring to work, or to their

         16  decision making process, but rather, to what may be

         17  the norms and practices that they may unwillingly

         18  follow, that have the kind of results that we are

         19  trying to address through this legislation.  Do you

         20  have any thoughts on that?

         21                 MS. STURM: I think you have

         22  identified a crucial reason why this piece of

         23  legislation is not redundant of, but in fact

         24  integrative of the types of laws already on the

         25  books, and the type of processes that are already in
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          2  place.  Those laws and processes are designed to

          3  deal primarily with individual discrimination, at

          4  the individual level, and involving intentional

          5  discrimination.  What is needed really, is a set of

          6  processes that bring the community into this with

          7  very concrete data, to reveal the kind of practices

          8  that Councilman Perkins is talking about, and to

          9  enable the existing agencies to collaborate, and to

         10  identify how those types of processes can be brought

         11  to bear at that institutional level.  So, it is in

         12  fact, the need to build these linkages. Across the

         13  agencies that are currently dealing with anti

         14  discrimination, in its more traditional form, with

         15  the community organizations that have the capacity

         16  to hold these processes accountable, and the people

         17  who have the expertise to help those inside of

         18  government, figure out what those problems are,

         19  figure out how they are addressing people, at this

         20  systemic level.  And to then use those processes to

         21  improve the quality of decision making, not only for

         22  those people, but across the board,  In fact,

         23  research has shown that institutions that are

         24  systematically excluding in the way that you are

         25  describing, at this level of system, are also
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          2  failing in other ways.  And what this legislation

          3  does. Is permit something that does not currently

          4  exist, which is the opportunity to figure out how

          5  those institutions are failing across these

          6  different processes.  What can be done to break into

          7  that dynamic, and then improve the quality of

          8  government across the board?

          9                 MS. POWELL: What I think you are

         10  referring to, is the individual comes into an

         11  organizational culture, a structure, a system, and

         12  can bring sometimes the most progressive and liberal

         13  and you know, wanting to move in the direction of

         14  equity feelings the best in the world.  But if the

         15  culture, if the system is communicating to you that,

         16  that is not the way we do business, then one is up

         17  against an enormous conflict.  And when I do these

         18  diversity trainings, or you know, really long drawn

         19  out, sometimes gender and racial justice

         20  initiatives, ultimately, what is being asked for, is

         21  systemic changes, seismic change in the culture, and

         22  the structure of that particular system.  If that

         23  does not happen, if people know that, that is not

         24  happening, there are often, some people continue the

         25  fight, and they are like flailing at the windmills,
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          2  and they will continue to do it constantly.  And

          3  other people just totally get the message.  I get

          4  the tone, so I do not even make the effort in this

          5  regard, and others get the message and say, so I get

          6  to do whatever my informed prejudices and

          7  stereotypes and so forth tell me.  So the system

          8  absolutely, not only has to change, but it also has

          9  to, and I talk about transforming, you know, our

         10  values, and transforming the ways in which we do

         11  business, they, people have to really understand and

         12  get a sense of, this is very much a new day, this is

         13  very much the way that we, that we are transforming

         14  ourselves towards greater and greater equity.

         15                 MS. MARLOW: While I cannot speak to

         16  your legislation, I can share with you the New

         17  Jersey experience which has been systemic and

         18  institutionalized approach to the problem. When the

         19  court not only appointed the Task Force on Minority

         20  Concerns, but Chief Justice Wilentz also appointed

         21  the Task Force on Women in the Court and the Task

         22  Force on Interpreting Services. Those are all issues

         23  that the court was very interested in, in terms of

         24  minority access, or access to the courts, and they

         25  took a systemic approach, and I think that we now
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          2  have the women in the court that continues in New

          3  Jersey, as well as the Supreme Court Committee on

          4  Minority Concerns.  The Interpreting Task Force,

          5  while not in place, we have interpreters, staff

          6  interpreters.  But I think the court took a bold

          7  step, in that it turned the lens in on itself, and

          8  it invited the minority community into the court

          9  system.  Many of the commissioners at the State

         10  level and at the local advisory level, are not

         11  judges or attorneys, they are lay people.  The court

         12  recognized that it did not have the policy makers at

         13  the top of the organization.  Therefore, they opened

         14  the doors to the community and say, come in and sit

         15  on these advisory committees and look at the entire

         16  court system, and tell us what we need to do.  We

         17  will work in partnership to make these changes, and

         18  to make these institutional changes.  So, the

         19  Minority Concerns Unit is, I would characterize as

         20  an advocacy unit.  We do not institutionalize the

         21  changes, the various -- I work with the various

         22  divisions in the court, I work with the Criminal

         23  Division, the HR Division.  We work on policies, we

         24  edit policies, we go in and plan for implementation.

         25    But that unit has to own the implementation, and
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          2  then we prioritized the recommendations, and we come

          3  back every two years and give the court a report

          4  card.  You are doing good in this area, you are not

          5  doing so well in this area, and it is evolutionary

          6  because there are other issues now that we have to

          7  deal with, regarding access to the courts.  So, it

          8  is continuing and I think that, that is one of the

          9  strengths of the model that is continuing to evolve

         10  as the court evolves.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         12  much.  I appreciate your testimony and your

         13  involvement in this very, very important issue.

         14  Obviously, we will be in touch with you for further

         15  deliberations and consultation.  Thank you so much.

         16                 Now we will go back to the beginning.

         17  I want to extend my appreciation to panel number

         18  one, Rhonda Copelon, Martha Davis and Esmeralda

         19  Simmons.  I know that we are about, at least an hour

         20  off schedule, as a result of the press conference

         21  and other delays.  Thank you so much for your

         22  cooperation and sticking around for this very, very

         23  important hearing.  And I know we are about two

         24  hours off schedule from your point of view.  So,

         25  thank you very much.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Do you

          3  swear or affirm that the testimony that you are

          4  about to give this committee will be the truth, the

          5  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

          6                 MS. COPELON: Yes.

          7                 MS. DAVIS: Yes.

          8                 MS. SIMMONS: Yes.

          9                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Please

         10  identify yourself before you give your testimony.

         11                 MS. COPELON: I am Rhonda Copelon and

         12  I am a Professor of Law.  I have to say, I have the

         13  privilege of being a Professor of Law at the City

         14  University of New York Law School, which is unique

         15  in its dedication to human rights and the service of

         16  human needs.

         17                 Good morning, Council Member Perkins

         18  and everyone. I want to begin by commending you, Mr.

         19  Perkins, and the sponsors of Intro 512A, because it

         20  is a critical, and as you have said, historic

         21  initiative.  I would also like to commend the

         22  tireless efforts of the New York City Human Rights

         23  Initiative, who spent several years, you know,

         24  really examining with experts, with human rights

         25  experts, with auditing experts, and with community
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          2  folks, how to make this, and craft this, into a

          3  careful workable pragmatic envisionary piece of

          4  legislation.

          5                 I want to address my comments to the

          6  inspiration for this initiative, and the value of

          7  the human rights model.  It is now almost 57 years

          8  since the signing of the Universal Declaration of

          9  Human Rights in 1948, which was the first

         10  comprehensive Human Rights Document, and which is

         11  now accepted throughout the world. The UDHR was a

         12  central part of the response to the unparalleled

         13  atrocities of the Nazi regime, and the devastation

         14  of the Second World War.  And it reflects the

         15  commitment of the world community, to make nations

         16  on every level responsible for the promotion and

         17  protection of the human rights, and the dignity of

         18  every person under their jurisdiction.

         19                 Through Eleanor Roosevelt's historic

         20  role as Chair of the first United Nations Human

         21  Rights Commission, the United States actually played

         22  a leading role in conceptualizing and drafting this

         23  ground breaking declaration.  The UDHR recognizes

         24  the indivisibility and interdependence of political,

         25  civil, social, economic and cultural rights.  In
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          2  other words, human rights cannot be

          3  compartmentalized, and every right is intertwined

          4  with every other.  Just as every violation of

          5  rights, generates a sequence of ever growing

          6  consequences for other human rights.  The UDHR

          7  recognize the principal against discrimination of

          8  any kind.  And particularly discrimination based on

          9  race and gender, as an absolute and core principal

         10  of universal human rights.  The UDHR promises have

         11  been codified in the series of global human rights

         12  treaties, two of which, which we are taking our

         13  inspiration from today, are entirely devoted to

         14  discrimination, the Convention of the Elimination of

         15  All Forms of Racial Discrimination and the

         16  Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of

         17  Discrimination Against Women.

         18                 These treaties seek to have nations

         19  not only redress discrimination, but also, and this

         20  is critical, devise positive measures to overcome

         21  the consequences of both de facto and de jure

         22  discrimination.  They do encompass, it is not

         23  original to this legislation.  They encompass

         24  intentional and unintentional discrimination.  The

         25  treaties recognize the obligation of governments to
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          2  eliminate official discrimination, but also

          3  recognize the obligation of governments to undertake

          4  positive initiatives and measures, through law,

          5  policies, and resource allocation, to eliminating

          6  discrimination and obstacles to equality, created by

          7  themselves, by individuals, and by private

          8  institutions.  Additionally, in respect to women,

          9  the CEDAW Convention emphasizes the necessity of

         10  eliminating discrimination in family life and

         11  intimate relations, for example through measures to

         12  prevent effectively, and redress domestic violence.

         13                 In 1994, the United States finally

         14  ratified the Race Convention, and much to our shame

         15  the Federal government has still only signed The

         16  Women's Convention.  However, the failure of the

         17  Federal government today to ratify or implement the

         18  principals of these conventions, does not in any

         19  way, tie the hands of local authorities.  As a

         20  matter of Federal Constitutional Law, you are not

         21  only free to do so, the Federal government's

         22  approach to treaty implementation, actually

         23  emphasizes the responsibility of State and local

         24  governments to do so, which my colleague, Professor

         25  Davis, I think. Will address at greater length.
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          2                 Moreover, the promise of universal

          3  human rights can only be recognized through local

          4  implementation.  Intro 512 does this by generating

          5  local consciousness of universal human rights, and

          6  generating local initiative, to redress persistent

          7  and inter sectional inequalities, based on race and

          8  gender.  San Francisco led the way, and other States

          9  are adopting similar measures.  But it is

         10  particularly fitting, that New York City, the most

         11  vital and diverse international City, take the next

         12  step and address both gender and racial

         13  discrimination, and their intersections and

         14  emanations together.

         15                 All over the world, nations with far

         16  less resources than our own, are taking steps to

         17  implement these conventions. Through voluntary

         18  assessment and reporting to international human

         19  rights treaty bodies, and through mechanisms

         20  developed on a local basis.  And they report

         21  consistently on progress, as well as the obstacles

         22  to implementation.  Intro 512's reporting, data

         23  collection, education, audit and planning provisions

         24  together with its creation, a participatory

         25  oversight institutions, constitute essential
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          2  components of a workable parallel process, that will

          3  engage officials and the citizenry, to identify and

          4  redress discrimination proactively (sic.), rather

          5  than not only wasting the City's resources defending

          6  lawsuits, but wasting the precious human resources

          7  of the people, who are the targets of

          8  discrimination, and who bring the lawsuits, or those

          9  who simply suffer in silence.

         10                 Intro 512 provides a great and

         11  historic opportunity, as you have indicated, for

         12  this City, and for all its inhabitants. I would like

         13  to close with the oft- cited words of Eleanor

         14  Roosevelt, which are so apt to the initiative before

         15  the council today.  She said, "Where, after all, do

         16  universal human rights begin?  In the small places,

         17  close to home, so close and so small that they

         18  cannot be seen on any maps of the world.  Yet they

         19  are the world of the individual person, the

         20  neighborhood she lives in, the school or college she

         21  attends, the factory or office where she works.

         22  Such are the places where every man, woman and child

         23  seeks equal justice, equal opportunity, equal

         24  dignity without discrimination.  Unless these rights

         25  have meaning there, they have little meaning
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          2  anywhere.  Without concerted citizen action to

          3  uphold them close to home, we shall look in vain for

          4  the progress in the larger world."

          5                 Intro 514 is that concerted citizen

          6  action, a needed process for all of us in New York

          7  City, as well as a signal to the larger world, that

          8  in New York City, at least, we take the universal

          9  enjoyment of human rights seriously.  I urge the

         10  council to adopt Intro 512A.  I appreciate deeply

         11  the efforts that you are putting into making this

         12  happen and I welcome your questions. Thank you.

         13                 MS. DAVIS: Thank you for the

         14  opportunity to testify today.  I am Martha Davis, an

         15  Associate Professor at Northeastern School of Law in

         16  Boston, where my research focuses on domestic use of

         17  international human rights principals.

         18                 As Professor Copelon said, you are to

         19  be commended for considering this important step

         20  toward implementing human rights standards, and I am

         21  going also address my remarks to the context of this

         22  provision, in the national, and international

         23  sphere.

         24                 In recognizing the significance of

         25  human rights standards in City government, you are
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          2  in the vanguard of cities and states nationwide.

          3  Many state and local policy makers, are not aware of

          4  the critical role that they play in human rights

          5  implementation.  Yet it is crystal clear that under

          6  U.S. Law, local governments have an obligation to

          7  implement international human rights standards.  And

          8  indeed, this principal has been acknowledged at all

          9  levels of government, including the federal

         10  government.

         11                 The federal system itself, requires

         12  that local governments implement international human

         13  rights laws.  And there are a couple of examples of

         14  the Federal government actually acknowledging that.

         15  One, when the United States assents to a treaty or

         16  other international agreement, or is bound by

         17  customary international law, implementation must

         18  occur on the State and local levels, as well as the

         19  Federal level, because our Federal system is

         20  categorical.  As you know, local governments have

         21  primary regulatory authority for many government

         22  functions, including social welfare, health family

         23  law, and so on.  That is if implementation occurs

         24  only at the Federal level, the United States is

         25  doomed to fall short of its international
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          2  obligations.  The categorical nature of U. S.

          3  Federalism itself, necessitates implementation of

          4  human rights standards, at every level of

          5  government.

          6                 The Federal government has repeatedly

          7  acknowledged these layers of implementation.  For

          8  example, when the Senate has given its advice and

          9  consent to ratify a major human rights treaty, such

         10  as the Race Convention, it is articulated the

         11  understanding, that state and local governments will

         12  participate in implementation.  Similarly, when

         13  testifying before the United Nation Committees, that

         14  review compliance with the Race Convention and other

         15  conventions to which the U.S. Has ratified, the

         16  Justice Department officials testifying, have

         17  specifically acknowledged the relevance of local

         18  laws to U.S. Compliance with the human rights

         19  treaties that they are addressing.

         20                 In sum, the federal system itself

         21  necessitates, and the U. S. Government has

         22  acknowledged, shared responsibility for human rights

         23  implementation by Federal, state and local

         24  authorities.  Now while New York City is in the

         25  vanguard, you are not alone.  In recent years,
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          2  several state and local governments have taken steps

          3  to implement international human rights principals.

          4  And I hope that we will have a chance to hear later

          5  this morning, about San Francisco's experience, and

          6  then the initiatives in other cities.

          7                 But you should also know that in

          8  2004, the State of California adopted the anti-

          9  discrimination standard set out in the Race

         10  Convention, as part of that State's domestic law.

         11  And that step actually permits the State to begin

         12  reintroducing affirmative action measures, after

         13  they were barred by PROP 209, so it is an important

         14  step.

         15                 Finally, implementation of human

         16  rights principals in New York, has the potential to

         17  reshape the civil rights dialogue in the City, as we

         18  heard described in the prior panel.  The human

         19  rights principals implemented through Intro 512,

         20  differ from civil right's principals in three

         21  significant ways, at least three. First, human

         22  right's principals require a proactive government,

         23  as we have talked about already this morning, and

         24  they enable government to address discrimination

         25  that may be beyond the reach of existing laws, to go
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          2  beyond the issue of intent to the questions of

          3  effect.  Second, these principals acknowledge the

          4  interdependence of rights and the range of rights,

          5  civil, political, social, economic and cultural.

          6  And then third, human right's principals universal

          7  and break down old race and sex identity barriers

          8  that may polarize and frustrate continued dialogue.

          9                 In short, implementing these

         10  principals in New York will reshape the local civil

         11  right's dialogue and over time, better allow the

         12  wide diversity of City residents to contribute their

         13  talents to the vibrant community life here.  Thank

         14  you.

         15                 MS. SIMMONS: Good afternoon.  My name

         16  is Esmeralda Simmons.  I serve as the Executive

         17  Director of the Center for Law and Social Justice of

         18  Medgar Evers College, City University of New York.

         19  I am very proud to be here, and would like to

         20  acknowledge that, the first speaker was my Law

         21  Professor, and she taught me everything I needed to

         22  know about discrimination against women, many, many

         23  years ago.

         24                 I am going to testify a little

         25  differently than I had originally planned to,
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          2  because I want to emphasize why this, why the bill,

          3  512A is necessary.  I am using myself as an example.But

          4  first I would like to emphasize the fact that the

          5  bill is necessary, but behind the bill, there must

          6  be the political will of the, not only the

          7  legislative, but of the executive branch.  And

          8  toward that end, we need to bring them into this

          9  dialogue, perhaps through the election, perhaps

         10  through another means, bring them into this

         11  dialogues to let them understand that we need them

         12  to be behind this, in order to make this happen.

         13                 Why do we need this?  Look at myself,

         14  as an example. Twenty three years ago, I was a City

         15  lawyer, a Corporation Council lawyer, that was

         16  working against discrimination in the construction

         17  industries.  Twenty two years ago, I was a

         18  Corporation Council lawyer that worked against

         19  discrimination in the fire department, the Vulcan

         20  case.  Here we are again.  Here we are again.  In

         21  addition, I served as a First Deputy Commissioner of

         22  Human Rights for the entire State of New York,

         23  working against discrimination. I finally left that

         24  position, in frustration.  The frustration I

         25  experienced then in 1983 that led me to create the

                                                            94

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  Center for Law and Social Justice, was that

          3  individual cases do not handle systemic problems.

          4  It is only through the only aspect we had then, of

          5  impact litigation, which is what my Center does,

          6  that we have actually achieved any changes.  I have

          7  done more in the last 20 years at the Center for Law

          8  and Social Justice, than the entire 20 years before,

          9  when I was working on individual cases.

         10                 So we need a systemic approach.  Not

         11  only in employment and in contracting, as have been

         12  mentioned here.  But primarily in the City of New

         13  York, on service provision, primarily on service

         14  provision.  Yes, there are Federal mandates and I

         15  know about them, I in fact, enforced them when I was

         16  a Federal attorney. They do not work to change the

         17  system.  Title Six is great, it does not make

         18  systemic change.  Title Nine is great, from what is

         19  left of it.

         20                 We need to have, in fact, the new

         21  paradigm affecting the world, come to New York City.

         22    And that is the human rights paradigm, in

         23  particular CERD and CEDAW.  And I am dedicating my

         24  career, henceforth, and I started this about five

         25  years ago, only on focusing on the human right's
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          2  impact that can be had in New York City.  Why?

          3  Because once we adopt these universal documents,

          4  they take us outside of the present construct.  The

          5  present construct has been discussed here, ad

          6  nauseam.  And that is, somebody must be injured,

          7  under traditional law, basically English law, in

          8  order to get redress.  So that means, hundreds,

          9  thousands, indeed, millions of people can be harmed,

         10  and unless someone has the thousands of dollars to

         11  mount the lawsuit to affect their individual case,

         12  nothing will happen.  And then if it happens, it may

         13  affect one, two or maybe two thousand people.  The

         14  rest of the folks continue. The only way to deal

         15  with this is for New York City, and the city

         16  council, which has been courageous to date, to

         17  undertake enacting 512A.

         18                 I want to say a few other things that

         19  have been mentioned.  There are other people going

         20  to be discussing these, in detail, but please, let

         21  me put on the record, as a testimony, we have ample

         22  evidence, statistical evidence, already.  The big

         23  report has been discussed.  We have not heard as

         24  yet, about the Community Service Society report on

         25  unemployment of black men in New York City.  We will
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          2  hear about that.  We have not, as yet, heard about

          3  the Women of Color Policy Networks Report on how

          4  women of color, in particular, have been

          5  disempowered (sic.) Across the board in New York

          6  City.  There are no laws that will change that,

          7  unless 512A is in fact, enacted.

          8                 I would also like to say that as you

          9  know, Chairman Perkins, myself individually, and

         10  other members of my staff at the Center for Law and

         11  Social Justice along with John Flateau, we in fact,

         12  manage the disparities study, that for the city

         13  council, that has just indicated the large

         14  disparities in contracting.  We know what is going

         15  on, you know what is going on, the question is, are

         16  we going to put into effect the same old ineffective

         17  legislation, as much as we believe in it, or are we

         18  going to move to the new paradigm?  I say let us

         19  enact 512.  Thank you very much for your leadership.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you all

         21  for again, your patience and your leadership in your

         22  own individual ways, in terms of fighting

         23  discrimination across the board, and looking for a

         24  proactive approaches, to address something that is

         25  so insidious.
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          2                 Let me just ask again, one quick

          3  question concerning litigation as the primary means

          4  for addressing discrimination. Each of you, I am

          5  sure, has something very specific to say about that.

          6    I know, Ms. Simmons, you just shed your

          7  experiences in that regard.  Do either of the two of

          8  you want to share something? Because right now, from

          9  the testimony of the administration, they are happy

         10  with the status quo, there is no question about

         11  that.  In fact, they are probably expecting a

         12  proclamation for a job well done.  While in some

         13  instances they cannot be blamed for some of the

         14  shortcomings, in fact, they have to take some

         15  responsibility, if they are not a part of the

         16  solution.  And that is the concern that I have,

         17  which is that, they are looking for instances, or

         18  claims of discrimination, in a sort of reactive way,

         19  as opposed to the proactive way that we are looking

         20  for, that will prevent such claims, and in fact,

         21  will eliminate the need for any type of litigation.

         22  Can you give us a quick response to that?

         23                 MS. DAVIS: I think that is an

         24  excellent question and I guess there are two things.

         25    One is that, I think there is the potential for
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          2  Intro 512 to eliminate the need for litigation by

          3  addressing issues at the outset, or before they rise

          4  the level of, or at an institutional level, before

          5  they rise the level of creating individual harm.

          6  And then the other question is, the limits that our

          7  current civil rights laws impose on proving that

          8  kind of individual harm, so that, we have talked

          9  here this morning about the difference between

         10  intents and affect, and we know that under many

         11  civil right's laws, you have to be able to establish

         12  invidious intent, discriminatory intent, in order to

         13  succeed.  Yet, many policies and practices that have

         14  discriminatory effects, are not actionable under

         15  that kind of framework.  And I know that I had an

         16  opportunity in the past to work on some of the

         17  issues with involving women in the fire department,

         18  and the problem is, that even though they are tiny

         19  numbers of women in the fire department, there is

         20  no, it has not been, there have not been successful

         21  efforts to prove that, that is intentional, even

         22  though that, that results from intentional adoption

         23  of certain tests that have a discriminatory impact

         24  on women, that there is not any invidious intent the

         25  courts have recognized, that creates that.  And so
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          2  this law would allow us to look beyond that intent

          3  requirement, to try to assess whether or not the

          4  effect is discriminatory and needs to be rectified,

          5  even though intent is not available.

          6                 There are also two ways in which I

          7  think that the City gains through this.  One is by

          8  saving money in litigation costs, and the other is

          9  through gains and productivity by being able to

         10  utilize the full talents of the range of citizens.

         11  So I think both are Fiscal impacts that we should be

         12  thinking about.

         13                 MS. COPELON: And I will be very brief

         14  because I know that we have little time and I really

         15  share the experience that Ms. Simmons indicates in

         16  terms of what it means to do litigation.  I think

         17  one of the things about litigation, although it is

         18  very important, and I have been a litigator myself,

         19  it leaves out so many people.  And it takes so much

         20  resources that get focused into the court, and never

         21  necessarily really move to the system.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: It is very, very

         23  important.

         24                 MS. COPELON: And a really good

         25  example, I think, is I have heard a statistic some
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          2  years ago that could have changed but, only about

          3  ten percent of the welfare medicaid recipients who

          4  have a right to a fair hearing, actually ask for it.

          5    And most everybody who asks for it, gets it.  What

          6  about the 90 percent? And I think the problem with a

          7  litigation approach, is that it does not, it reaches

          8  such a small number of people, even when you have a

          9  class action, and even those are being cut back.

         10  So, I think this is particularly important.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I think the

         12  litigation approach is designed to discourage.  I

         13  think it is a very cynical approach that government

         14  can say we have a way to answer the problem, but

         15  effectively no, that the obstacle is still there

         16  because of the kind of systemic obstacles that such

         17  an approach involves.  I hear it time and time

         18  again, about people who feel that they have had some

         19  problem with discrimination in government, though

         20  some place like that, but have no faith that the

         21  process will be timely, that the process will be

         22  effective, and so they just say forget it, and walk

         23  away with cynicism and despair.

         24                 So, thank you so much, all of you,

         25  for your response.  I, yes --
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          2                 MS. SIMMONS: I want to mention the

          3  fact that another indication of how the process is

          4  not working, is the docket at the City Commission of

          5  Human Rights, and how long an individual case takes

          6  to be decided, and whether or not it ever eventually

          7  winds up at EEOC?

          8                 The other thing I want to say is

          9  there are some proactive things, measures, in the

         10  City, such as an EEPC headed up by Abe May, who is

         11  trying to do things, but the will of the government,

         12  executive branch, is not behind implementing the

         13  change.  So that is why we need 512A.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you all

         15  very much for your testimony, your patience, and

         16  your good work on behalf of the people of the City

         17  of New York.

         18                 The next panel will be a panel that

         19  has come a long way to join us.  In fact, as long as

         20  they have come, they nevertheless have preceded us.

         21  They are a model of how such a law can be effective.

         22    They come all the way from the fair City of San

         23  Francisco, Emily Murase, Executive Director, Murase,

         24  Murase, San Francisco, Director of San Francisco

         25  Department of the Status of Women, and Krishanti
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          2  Dharmarai, am I right?  Forgive me.  And while you

          3  are getting ready, I am going to take a quick one

          4  minute recess.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay, thank you

          6  very much. Please swear them in.

          7                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Witnesses,

          8  do you swear or affirm that the testimony that you

          9  are about to give this committee will be the truth,

         10  the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         11                 MS. MURASE: I do.

         12                 MS. DHARMARAI: I do.

         13                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: You may

         14  proceed.  Please identify yourself before you give

         15  your testimony.

         16                 MS. DHARMARAI: Thank you.  Good

         17  afternoon, Council Member Bill Perkins, city

         18  officials, community leaders.  My name is Krishanti

         19  Dharmarai and I am honored to be testifying here in

         20  support of passing and enforcing this ground

         21  breaking human rights legislation in New York City,

         22  that will respect, protect, and fulfill the human

         23  rights of all of its residents, by utilizing the

         24  United Nations Convention on the Elimination of All

         25  Forms of Discrimination Against Women, CEDAW, and
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          2  the United Nations Convention on the Elimination of

          3  All Forms of Racial Discrimination, CERD.

          4                 I am here today representing WILD for

          5  Human Rights, the organization that spearheaded the

          6  passing of CEDAW ordinance in San Francisco in 1998.

          7    I was also on the CEDAW Task Force that helped

          8  implement the ordinance, and develop its five year

          9  action plan.

         10                 Women are supposed to be earning 82

         11  cents to the dollar that men make.  This is based on

         12  European and American women who are educated.  If

         13  you add women of color into this mix, mainly

         14  African- American women and Latino, the number goes

         15  down to 64 cents to the dollar that men make.  And

         16  if you only look at women of color, and these two

         17  communities, that goes down to 48 cents to the

         18  dollar that men make.  So are the women of color

         19  discriminated because of their race, their gender,

         20  or both?

         21                 Discrimination, as we know, is

         22  systemic and multi faceted.  Current methods of

         23  addressing discrimination are mostly limited to

         24  isolating identities and reaction.  While singling

         25  out identities may make it simple for policy
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          2  development, we know that a person's life cannot be

          3  separated into boxes.  No system in place, has yet

          4  been able to reduce discrimination consistently and

          5  constructively, by separating each identity.

          6                 Reacting to discrimination when it

          7  occurs, only continues to keep the policy makers,

          8  politicians, and activists in business.  Using CEDAW

          9  to address discrimination, has helped us in San

         10  Francisco to consistently be effective, proactive,

         11  and strategic, at a time of anti- affirmative

         12  action, and when equality has been under attack.

         13  For the City of New York, the importance of

         14  combining both treaties CEDAW and CERD, to be passed

         15  as one legislation, helps the City and communities,

         16  not to position one set of rights against another,

         17  move beyond single issues and single identity, and

         18  not to have band- aid approaches in reaction to

         19  needs and City policies.  Using human rights

         20  framework, helps us advance from a position of

         21  strength, by demanding for rights, rather than

         22  pleading for benefits.

         23                 I will only provide you with what we,

         24  the community, recommended to the City of San

         25  Francisco and got passed, because Emily Murase, the
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          2  Executive Director of the San Francisco Department

          3  on the Status of Women, would expand on its

          4  implementation.

          5                 San Francisco Board of Supervisors

          6  and the Mayor adopted CEDAW in April of 1998, as an

          7  ordinance that aims to reduce gender based

          8  discrimination in the areas of employment, service

          9  delivery, and resource allocation.  The City

         10  Departments revised policies to reduce

         11  discrimination against women, as they were mandated

         12  to conduct a gender analysis, within a human rights

         13  framework.  The implementation of this ordinance was

         14  led by the creation of a task force made up of City

         15  officials and community leaders, which was housed in

         16  the San Francisco Department on the Status of Women.

         17    Here are some highlights, because of this

         18  particular ordinance, the City Commission on the

         19  Status of Women became a department.  It increased

         20  the number of women in non- traditional employment

         21  and positions, it increased the appointments of more

         22  women to revenue generating commissions, such as the

         23  airport commission, new staff positions in Juvenile

         24  probation was developed to help new programs

         25  develop, and that female offenders will get more
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          2  allocated funding for their programs.  Collection of

          3  desegregated data was done by City departments.

          4  Changing the distance between street lights, for the

          5  safety of women was developed.  City- wide research

          6  and promoting of flexible work hours for women were

          7  developed.  There was an increase in training in

          8  sexual harassment in City departments.

          9                 Using CEDAW helped us address

         10  discrimination proactively, by influencing the

         11  attitudes and behaviors of decision makers in a non

         12  threatening manner, by analyzing that the norm that

         13  we usually use, is not always effective, and by

         14  challenging our single issue focus, CEDAW has

         15  strengthened the existing policies in San Francisco.

         16    Passing CEDAW has worked for us.  Still there is a

         17  long way to go before all women in San Francisco

         18  achieve full equality.  A City does not always need

         19  more resources to enforce human right's standards.

         20  However, it does need the political will to shift

         21  the attitudes from being business as usual, to

         22  creative problem solving.

         23                 WILD for Human Rights has seen an

         24  increase in wanting to pass similarly initiatives

         25  across the United States, and especially in the

                                                            107

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  State of California, during the past few years. We

          3  are providing technical assistance to these

          4  initiatives in Los Angeles, Santa Cruz, Berkeley,

          5  San Diego, and Alameda County of California, Boise

          6  Idaho, Chicago Illinois, Seattle Washington, and the

          7  State of Massachusetts.  These Cities and States

          8  have received bipartisan support.

          9                 We must recognize that ultimately the

         10  struggle to end discrimination, is about protecting

         11  our dignity.  When a women is discriminated against

         12  because of her identity, her human rights are

         13  violated, thereby threatening her inherent right to

         14  dignity.

         15                 I commend my friends and colleagues

         16  in New York, especially those at the Urban Justice

         17  Center for Human Rights Project, for making this

         18  daring and brilliant step toward securing the

         19  dignity for all who live in New York City.  Thank

         20  you.

         21                 MS. MURASE: Good afternoon City

         22  Council Member Perkins, Council Member Moskowitz,

         23  and to the citizens of New York. My name is Emily

         24  Murase, Executive Director of the San Francisco

         25  Department on the Status of Women.  I was actually
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          2  born in New York City and we lived in Morningside

          3  Heights, which Council Member Perkins represents --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Welcome home.

          5                 MS. MURASE: Thank you very much.

          6                 I am here to talk about the

          7  implementation of CEDAW on San Francisco.  Just a

          8  couple of facts about CEDAW.  It was signed by the

          9  General Assembly of the United Nations adopted an

         10  international treaty for women in 1979.  179

         11  countries, over 90 percent of the U.N. General

         12  Assembly, have signed it, including Afghanistan,

         13  Iraq and North Korea.  That leaves the United

         14  States, together with Iran and Libya, outside of

         15  this international consensus.

         16                 In 1998, San Francisco became the

         17  first City in the United States to make the

         18  underlying principles of CEDAW, a matter of local

         19  government policy.  I chaired an 11 member seat at

         20  task force, composed of City officials and community

         21  representatives, such as my colleague, Krishanti, to

         22  implement this ordinance.

         23                 A major component of our work was

         24  gender analyses. What is a gender analyses?  A

         25  gender analyses focuses on three components,
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          2  services, work force, composition, and budgeting

          3  with a human rights gender perspective.

          4                 I would like to give just three

          5  examples of our work in our gender analyses.  We

          6  went to the Department of Public Works and said we

          7  would like to do this analysis.  They looked at us

          8  blankly.  There is no issue with Public Works.

          9  Sidewalks and street lights benefit the public

         10  generally.  Well, actually it turns out that

         11  sidewalks and street lights do have a gender impact.Let

         12  us talk about sidewalks.  San Francisco has embarked

         13  on a project to introduce, to make curb cuts, at

         14  busy intersections.  Let us think about who uses

         15  curb cuts.  It is the disabled, and it is care

         16  givers to the very young in strollers, and to the

         17  very old in wheelchairs.  So in addition to the

         18  disabled, women, who account for most of the care

         19  givers, are disproportionately impacted, when there

         20  are no curb cuts.

         21                 Let us look at street lighting.

         22  Where there is poor street lighting, there is a

         23  greater likelihood of sexual assault. Women are

         24  disproportionately the victims of sexual assault.

         25                 The Juvenile Probation Department has

                                                            110

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  been very proactive in this area.  What our gender

          3  analysis revealed, was that girls committed crimes

          4  for vastly different reasons than boys, mostly

          5  having to do with their relationship to their

          6  family, to friends, to a boyfriend.  And yet they

          7  were being handled as if they were boys.  So, in

          8  working with the Juvenile Probation Department, they

          9  introduced a new system where probation officers

         10  would only handle girl probationers.  It turns out

         11  it is a lot more difficult and time consuming to

         12  deal with just girls, than with just boys, but in

         13  any case, they have made real and tangible progress,

         14  in developing gender specific programming, to

         15  address the particular needs of girls, including

         16  mental health counseling, family planning, parent

         17  education.

         18                 Finally, we approached the Rent

         19  Stabilization Board and asked about their client

         20  demographics.  It turned out that they had no idea

         21  who it was that walked in through their doors, for

         22  arbitration between landlords and renters.  For all

         23  they knew, it could have been 98 percent Chinese

         24  American grandmothers, but they had no clue.  So our

         25  very first step with the Rents Board was to
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          2  establish a system of record keeping, for client

          3  demographics.

          4                 What did this cost?  When the Board

          5  of Supervisors approved the 1998 ordinance, the

          6  legislation included funding for one FTE, one full

          7  time equivalent, to coordinate the work of the CEDAW

          8  Task Force, and $50 thousand dollars to underwrite

          9  the costs of developing the initial set of gender

         10  guidelines.  We then asked departments to appoint a

         11  liaison from senior management.  Typically this

         12  liaison was a deputy director.  And the departments

         13  did all of the work.  It is part of their mission of

         14  delivering services of creating an equatable budget.

         15    So there was no additional layer of bureaucracy,

         16  as was suggested by a representative from the

         17  Mayor's office earlier today.

         18                 I just want to conclude with the

         19  assessment of the proposed legislation.  I have

         20  three points.  First, compared to the San Francisco

         21  ordinance, the New York Human Rights Ordinance is

         22  wider in scope.  And I believe the proposed

         23  legislation is stronger for its explicit connection

         24  to the U.N. Convention on the Elimination of All

         25  Forms of Racial Discrimination.
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          2                 Second, the proposed legislation

          3  accounts for the need to train City officials.  This

          4  is something that we are now grappling with in San

          5  Francisco.  We have asked departments to do a CEDAW

          6  analysis as part of their budgeting process, but

          7  most departments have no idea what CEDAW is all

          8  about.

          9                 Finally, the emphasis on public

         10  participation in all aspects of the project, is very

         11  wise, as we have found in San Francisco.  The

         12  feedback that we received from clients and grantees,

         13  have been invaluable in developing meaningful

         14  recommendations.

         15                 This concludes my testimony.  Thank

         16  you very much for your valuable consideration.  I am

         17  available as a resource to you as you embark on this

         18  landmark project.  And I have provided a number of

         19  supporting documents, including a time line of our

         20  work, a roster of the department participants in the

         21  gender analyses, and in your packets, you should

         22  find a CEDAW fact sheet, letters to departments to

         23  participate in the gender analysis, salary

         24  information about the policy analyst that was hired,

         25  and our CEDAW Task Force gender analysis report,
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          2  that includes a summary of recommendations from the

          3  six City departments.  Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          5  much.  You have been very generous in traveling so

          6  far to share with us your experience which has been

          7  informative and enlightening and actually inspiring.

          8    And we are very appreciative of the fact that you

          9  have taken some leadership in this, and that we will

         10  benefit from that leadership and of course, your

         11  expertise will be called upon as we move forward,

         12  time and time again.

         13                 Two quick questions, I guess.  One,

         14  Fiscal impact, do you have an idea in dollars and

         15  cents, what it is costing to implement this in San

         16  Francisco?

         17                 MS. MURASE: I do not have years in

         18  terms of settlements, because that is one way to

         19  figure the benefit, the Fiscal benefit of this.  And

         20  really, this has been assumed by the departments,

         21  very proactively, as a part of their daily work.  So

         22  there has not been itemized, additional lines

         23  devoted to this work.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: So, in other

         25  words, if I am understanding you correctly, their
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          2  costs to implement are on one hand have been

          3  relatively minimal because it was easily to

          4  incorporate into the present structure.  And on the

          5  other hand, the benefits are clear, as a result of

          6  lawsuits that were not, that were preempted by

          7  virtue of not having complaints.  Am I correct?

          8                 MS. MURASE: I believe that to be

          9  true.  I do not have exact figures on settlements.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: We would

         11  appreciate, if they are accessible, that you get

         12  them to us.  Thank you so much.  Yes-

         13                 MS. DHARMARAI: I think one thing to

         14  remember is that initially there was a lot of

         15  training, around what gender analysis mean, what

         16  human rights is, and how do you really ask a

         17  different set of questions?  So initial amount of

         18  money went into actually, hiring a team from New

         19  York City to develop the gender analysis, but the

         20  trainings around human rights, happened during the

         21  first year, and that was actually between community

         22  leaders and you know, community organizations,

         23  trained some of the City folks, and then the

         24  Commission Department on the Status of Women,

         25  trained individuals from different departments.
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          2  After that initial training, we have not had to do

          3  much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I want to

          5  apologize to my colleague, Council Woman Eva

          6  Moskowitz, I forgot to acknowledge her, and

          7  appreciate her for her attendance today.  Council

          8  Woman Moskowitz.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chair for holding this hearing on this very,

         11  very important topic.  I am wondering if we can

         12  recruit you back from San Francisco.  This is such

         13  important work that you have done, and we have so

         14  much information now, about what has and has not

         15  happened in San Francisco.  I guess I wanted to

         16  understand, and I apologize for getting here a

         17  little late, but when you did, because I often, I

         18  sit on four or five committees, and I often ask what

         19  I consider the gender question, and I have found

         20  that generally the offices have not thought about it

         21  before.  I remember very distinctly when the Taxi

         22  and Limousine Commission came before the

         23  transportation Committee, and they had done

         24  Operation Refusal, which was an undercover operation

         25  to figure out when taxi cabs were not picking up
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          2  persons of color, which is a real problem in New

          3  York City.  I had just casually asked if anyone had

          4  done one about not picking up women with strollers,

          5  something that I happen to have experienced, and not

          6  only had they not done it, but it never even crossed

          7  their mind, that, that was a problem.  So I guess I

          8  am wondering, when you have done this kind of

          9  questioning, can you really get the agencies?   You

         10  know, one of the problems we have is even when we

         11  pass laws, the administration drags its feet, in

         12  terms of an implementation.  Do you have concrete

         13  examples where you have been able to get, just to

         14  stick with the gender, where you can really say I

         15  tick it off as a concrete policy changed as a result

         16  of asking the gender question?

         17                 The light has to be off for the mic

         18  to be on.

         19                 MS. DHARMARAI: I can give you two

         20  examples.  One was during the time of the, actually,

         21  Department of Public Works was very proactive in

         22  talking to us about wanting to figure out how to

         23  increase the number of women in the department.  But

         24  two examples I can think about was one, around

         25  street lights, okay?  So that question came into
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          2  being actually, the reason we started, we even

          3  thought about wanting to have a gender analysis, was

          4  one of the City officials who obtained that a task

          5  force meeting of a community leaders that we had

          6  pulled together said, so we do not understand, I can

          7  understand in relation to services, you know,

          8  providing women services, but what has the

          9  Department of Public Works got to do with women,

         10  right?  And we said, street lights. What does gender

         11  mean?  So when we explained what gender meant in two

         12  sentences, and said that street lights are placed

         13  mainly by men, because that is who employed, based,

         14  and nobody knows how and who decided on the distance

         15  of the street lights.  So street lights are placed

         16  based on the level of comfort of men, okay?  And

         17  when we said, can you think about women?  Now,

         18  actually the Department of Public Works has changed

         19  the distance between street lights, because they

         20  figured out that there is a distinction between how

         21  men and women walk in the night when the streets are

         22  not well lit.

         23                 The other one is around the lack of

         24  women actually even applying to jobs in Department

         25  of Public Works, for non traditional positions at
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          2  large.  We figured out that the jobs start at 6

          3  a.m., day care starts at 8 a.m.  So you know, that

          4  is no place to leave your child if you are a single

          5  mother, and especially for women of color, and you

          6  know that non traditional positions pay more, than

          7  traditional positions for women.

          8                 And that in a nutshell showed that

          9  there was a distinction and women were indirectly

         10  discriminated.  And there is a policy change in

         11  looking at either providing child care, or paying

         12  for child care, or having flex hours.

         13                 MS. MURASE: I just want to continue

         14  on the Department of Public Works example.  In your

         15  package, I have a handout, and on page three, gives

         16  you a sample of the level of detail that we looked

         17  at by department.  So on page three, we looked at

         18  the San Francisco female labor pool, generally from

         19  census data.  And it showed that in San Francisco,

         20  20 percent of architects, were women.  Well, lo and

         21  behold, at the Department of Public Works, it is

         22  only seven percent.  We also found that to be true

         23  in most cases at the Department of Public Works,

         24  with the exception of office and clerical.  For the

         25  men, 33 percent of the San Francisco labor pool was
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          2  male, but only 18 percent of office and clerical at

          3  DPW were male.  So it is not just, you know, it is

          4  really about equity.  It is about rights for all.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you so

          6  much, especially I appreciate the questioning from

          7  Council Woman Moskowitz, because much of this

          8  discussion seems at sometimes tends to be simply

          9  about employment and contracting opportunities,

         10  which are example of the street lights represents

         11  the fact that the kind of concerns that we have, the

         12  discrimination that we are seeing, is related to

         13  service delivery, as well.  And the sensitivity and

         14  appreciation of the differences that are needed,

         15  that are there that have to be accommodated.  Thank

         16  you very, once again for your journey to the Big

         17  Apple.  I am sorry you are no longer a Morningside

         18  Avenue, this is a very important time where your

         19  presence will be very helpful, not just for this

         20  legislation, I should add.

         21                 MS. MURASE: Thank you for your

         22  leadership.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: We are going to

         24  move to our next panel --

         25                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Folks, we
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          2  are running out of time unfortunately, we do want to

          3  give everyone who signed up a chance to address the

          4  committee, and so I know that everyone has got

          5  written testimony that they are submitting in

          6  support of their appearance here today.  We are

          7  going to ask that subsequent witnesses do everything

          8  within their power to limit and summarize their

          9  testimony.  I will assure you that we do make the

         10  written testimony a part of the record, and not only

         11  that, we are going to be having subsequent hearings

         12  before those hearings, and as we work on the

         13  legislation, I personally, and other members of the

         14  council members staff, will be reading all of the

         15  testimony that is submitted.  So, we are going to

         16  proceed forward with the next panel.  But again,

         17  please summarize your testimony and forgive us for

         18  running out of time.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Jose Garcia,

         20  Brandon Ward, Ramona Ortega, Doug Lasdon, Paul

         21  Washington, Diana Salas, Bob Perry, do we have three

         22  or four?  Oh, we have four ready, I am sorry.  Will

         23  the Sergeant- at- Arms accommodate us with another

         24  chair, please?

         25                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Witnesses,
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          2  do you swear or affirm that the testimony that you

          3  are about to give this committee will be the truth,

          4  the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

          5                 MR. GARCIA: I do.

          6                 MR. WARD: I do.

          7                 MS. ORTEGA: I do.

          8                 MR. LASDON: I do.

          9                 MR. WASHINGTON: I do.

         10                 MS. SALAS: I do.

         11                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Thank you.

         12  Identify yourself before you summarize your

         13  testimony.

         14                 MR. WARD: Brandon Ward, the President

         15  of New York City Chapter of Blacks in Government.

         16                 MS. ORTEGA: Ramona Ortega, Director

         17  of Human Rights Project Urban Justice Center.

         18                 MR. WASHINGTON: Paul Washington,

         19  President of the Vulcan Society and the New York

         20  Black Fire Fighters.

         21                 MS. SALAS: Diana Salas, Researcher,

         22  Women of Color Policy Network.

         23                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: All right,

         24  you may begin. Ms. Salas, why do you not go first?

         25                 MS. SALAS: Okay. Thank you Councilman
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          2  Perkins for inviting me to testify on Intro 512.  My

          3  name is Diana Salas.  I am a Researcher for the

          4  Women of Color Policy Network, and I have been

          5  testifying, I assume for the past three years on the

          6  status of women and people of color in this City,

          7  around the issues of labor market, educational

          8  attainment, criminal justice system.

          9                 During previous testimonies, many of

         10  the council members have always said to us, we agree

         11  with your analysis, but what about these other

         12  issues?  And I have to tell them, data is not

         13  available.  Or, City agencies refuse to give me

         14  data.  And I am going to summarize my testimony

         15  because I want to actually address the

         16  administration that first presented, because his

         17  testimony was based on the data collection that

         18  already exists.  And I am here to say that, yes, it

         19  exists, but if it is not accessible, I mean, it is

         20  not transparent, than what good is it?

         21                 And it is mainly limited to

         22  employment data.  Each and every agency has to

         23  collect data for compliance for Federal EEO

         24  policies, which again is dealing with employment.

         25  This is then submitted to the Equal Employment
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          2  Practices Commission, and they have their annual

          3  reports on where women, people of color, in general,

          4  are in City government.  And time and time again, it

          5  shows that particularly women of color are stagnated

          6  in particular agencies, low income wages, et cetera,

          7  et cetera.

          8                 The other area is that each and every

          9  City agency has to submit performance indicators for

         10  the Mayor's Management Report.  And although the MMR

         11  is useful for examining overall City performance, it

         12  does not track the differences in service delivery

         13  by the different groups in the City, nor does it

         14  track it by geographical location.

         15                 And each and every Mayoral

         16  administration, modifies or changes the MMR, so it

         17  makes it difficult for anybody wanting to track one

         18  particular indicator through time, to see if any

         19  changes have actually taken place.

         20                 So, in line with the past panel, data

         21  is currently collected at the City level.  This is

         22  not going to add an additional layer to City

         23  agencies.  We are not asking them to do anything

         24  more than they would already be doing.  The

         25  Department of Health is an example, ACS, is an
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          2  example, Department of Education under Federal law,

          3  is collecting tons and tons of data,  the problem

          4  is, it is accessible to the public?  Can researchers

          5  have access to it?  Are they looking at it to see if

          6  there is a desperate impact between groups of color,

          7  women or the two combined, which is my problem, most

          8  of the time?  I ask for data on women of color, and

          9  I get racial data with no gender, or I get gender

         10  data with no race, which does not tell me anything

         11  about women, black women, Latinos, or Native

         12  Americans or Asian Women.

         13                 So, basically, this legislation is

         14  set to do that purpose.  To make sure that the City

         15  agencies collect desegregated data to see if it has

         16  any desperate impact in each and every one of the

         17  groups, and then to come up with an action plan.  I

         18  mean, it is not, they do not already do it, we are

         19  not asking them to do anything else, it is just,

         20  look at it in a different way.  Ask the different

         21  questions.  And that is where I am going to leave

         22  it. Thank you.

         23                 MR. WARD: Good afternoon.  My name is

         24  Brandon Ward. Council Speaker Perkins, thank you for

         25  this opportunity to testify on this proposition 512.
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          2

          3                 To be brief, Blacks in Government,

          4  The New York Chapter, has issued two reports in the

          5  past 11 months.  We have not, in each of the reports

          6  we requested meetings with the administrations, just

          7  let us talk.  We, you know, we do not want to, you

          8  know, we do not want to make any deals, we just want

          9  to talk, give you some insight from within, that has

         10  not occurred.            This is encouraging because

         11  this is a proactive approach that this bill is

         12  proposing, in terms of asking the administration to

         13  be forthright and forth coming and being proactive.

         14  I mean, we are so familiar with all of these terms,

         15  but it never takes on its life, it never takes on

         16  the meaningful (sic.) Of the word.

         17                 Let me just give you some of the

         18  facts and this is an insider's perspective.  And if

         19  you want a copy of our thinking about diversity in

         20  City government, particularly in terms of race, feel

         21  free to get it from our website.  The information is

         22  listed on the bulletin at the side bar.

         23                 These are the facts.  New York City

         24  is the most diverse population in the country, but

         25  it does not reflect the diversity in City
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          2  government, in terms of the administration and

          3  decision making.

          4                 Fact two, Blacks, Hispanics, Asians,

          5  comprise of 37, 16 and four percent respectfully of

          6  the City's work force.  All together that group

          7  combined, accounts for only 19 percent of all the

          8  decision makers and agencies in policy driven

          9  decision in mission critical positions of agencies.

         10                 Fact three, the existing

         11  administration, let me be specific, the Bloomberg

         12  administration, policies and practices have failed

         13  to alleviate the institutional biases that have

         14  maintained the concentration of blacks in low level

         15  managerial and clerical positions.  By statistical,

         16  it is 79 percent of the City's highest paying

         17  managerial titles are represented by whites, 62

         18  percent of all the clerical positions are Blacks and

         19  Hispanics and minorities. This is the challenge that

         20  we face.  That even in the presence of these

         21  statistical data, of this data, the question that

         22  constantly must be addressed is, if we have this

         23  disparity in light of the fact that we have an EEO

         24  and affirmative hiring plans for agencies, the

         25  question is, where would it be without that?  And we
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          2  have a serious, serious challenge in this City to

          3  not just give the rhetorical commentary on this

          4  thing, but we need the leadership, and not just

          5  leadership, but the leadership will.  This stuff can

          6  change.   Mayor Dinkins demonstrated it in his own

          7  capacity to change that it can change.  What we need

          8  in City government is the leadership will, to make

          9  diversity and government reflective of the

         10  population.

         11                 And in the spirit of that, I am

         12  strongly encouraging the support of Resolution, this

         13  proposition, Intro 512.

         14                 MS. ORTEGA: Good afternoon, Ramona

         15  Ortega.  I want to first thank Council Member

         16  Perkins for taking the bold step and introducing

         17  this legislation.  It is innovative, it is creative,

         18  and I think that we are going to go a long way with

         19  it.

         20                 I am wearing a number of hats here,

         21  both as a representative of the Urban Justice Center

         22  and the New York City Human Rights Initiative, who

         23  helped craft this legislation. Speaking on behalf of

         24  the Urban Justice Center, I would like to say that

         25  Intro 512 will really get us to focus on the
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          2  problem, instead of focusing on who to blame for the

          3  problem.  I think that is really important for us

          4  who are advocates, who spend day to day looking at

          5  the problems and seeing how the systemic effects of

          6  policy issues affect real lives and real people.

          7  The Urban Justice Center has over the past 20 years,

          8  launched many a lawsuit against this City of New

          9  York, and many of those lawsuits, although

         10  litigation is a great tool, could have been

         11  prevented.  If the administration would have been

         12  open to advocates would have really embraced the

         13  process of engaging with advocates and engaging with

         14  those that are affected by the policies, and this is

         15  what we are asking the City to do.  It is about time

         16  that the City take seriously, the human rights of

         17  its residents.  It is about time that they take a

         18  step forward in being proactive, instead of just

         19  talking the talk.  We need to walk the walk.  We

         20  need to show them that there are ways to do this,

         21  ways that you can work with residents of this City,

         22  to work with advocates, and it does not always have

         23  to be an advosarial (sic.) Relationship.  This is

         24  about making a better City for all of us, if we are

         25  the world's second home, we need to make sure that
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          2  we fulfill that promise.

          3                 So I just want to point to a list

          4  that we have over in the corner there, of a number

          5  of lawsuits and studies that show huge discrepancies

          6  in the way that we deliver services in this City and

          7  how these policies, I know a lot of them were just

          8  policy changes, that the administration would not

          9  open up and listen to advocates, and therefore we

         10  had to bring a class action lawsuit. Let us take

         11  litigation out of this sort of equation and not make

         12  it the first step, but sort of like the last option.

         13    Let us make it more equitable, let us make it more

         14  efficient.

         15                 And in terms of, I am going to put my

         16  Human Rights hat on, I am going to sound very

         17  excited to be here today in this historic moment

         18  because a lot of times we think of human rights as

         19  this thing abroad that we need to go save people in

         20  other countries, and we need some saving right here,

         21  at home.  We have rising hunger, homelessness,

         22  number of issues that we deal with in the trenches

         23  day in and day out, and I think this is a real tool

         24  for advocates that are doing the work on the ground.

         25    So I thank the council for supporting this bill
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          2  and hope that the Mayor will be on board, as well.

          3                 MR. WASHINGTON: Good afternoon and

          4  thank you Councilman Perkins for allowing us to

          5  address you this afternoon.             We

          6  enthusiastically support the New York City Human

          7  Rights Initiative.  The agency I am employed by,

          8  FDNY, would undoubtedly benefit from this new

          9  proactive measure in numerous ways.  For instance, a

         10  human rights analysis which would be conducted by

         11  every City agency under this bill, would reveal many

         12  policies that discriminate against people of color,

         13  and women in FDNY's hiring practices.  The

         14  department would then be mandated to develop an

         15  action plan to correct the problems that were

         16  uncovered. This would certainly lead to a fire

         17  department that is more diverse than what we now

         18  have.  FDNY is currently 92 percent white and almost

         19  100 percent male.  We all would agree that this

         20  method is far more effective and far less expensive

         21  in the long run, than the constant cycle of lawsuits

         22  and costly settlements that are so common.

         23                 I am sure the council recognizes the

         24  tremendous good the New York City Human Rights

         25  Initiative will have on not only on FDNY, but on all
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          2  City agencies.  Passage of this bill will only add

          3  to the council's impressive legacy.

          4                 And I would just like to add that

          5  there is no agency in New York City that would

          6  benefit more from this than the fire department.

          7  The segregation, the hiring practices, the racial

          8  disparity in the fire department of New York, is

          9  legendary.  And for the fire department to be

         10  mandated by law to take these proactive

         11
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          2  as opposed to us always trying to make them do what

          3  they do not want to do, could have a tremendous

          4  impact.  Thanks.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you all

          6  very much for what you do.  I want to, you know, the

          7  administration seems to believe that this system is

          8  presently working.  As a matter of fact, to the

          9  question of the fire department, they cited a very

         10  aggressive campaign with the results nevertheless,

         11  as you pointed out.  How would you describe the

         12  administration's efforts?

         13                 MR. WASHINGTON: Pitiful.  Pitiful,

         14  pathetic.  I mean they know that these, every effort

         15  that they put forth, is merely just, they only do it

         16  so they can have an excuse for when we attack them.

         17  That is their only motivation.  They are not

         18  motivated to actually change it, they just want to

         19  have, when we say you are not doing this, they want

         20  to have something to point at.  Their efforts are

         21  pitiful.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: One of the

         23  finger pointing tactics that they use, is to say

         24  that the numbers are low because the people do not

         25  want to participate.  Is it your experience that

                                                            133

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  only two percent, that, that two percent number is

          3  reflective of the interest in communities of color

          4  and women to participate, or is it reflective of

          5  something that is systemically wrong?

          6                 MR. WASHINGTON: Something that is

          7  systemically wrong.  This last test, 7.7 percent of

          8  the people who took the test, paid their money and

          9  so on, and sat down for the test were black.  We

         10  come on the job, at only two or three percent.  That

         11  is a tremendous wash out rate.  7.7 percent, it

         12  could be higher, it should be higher, but to get

         13  washed out at such a rate, and for the

         14  administration not to address that problem, is

         15  practically criminal.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Yes.

         17                 MR. WARD: It was interesting, a

         18  couple of months ago, I wrote an article for the

         19  Chief, addressing the disparity in the fire

         20  department.  And subsequently a letter was written

         21  by a 38 year veteran of the department.  His

         22  response was essentially that we missed the point,

         23  because the problem with the inability to recruit

         24  blacks, was that blacks could not take the heat.

         25  That was, I mean this is his letter to the editor,
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          2  38 years experience and this is his analysis and

          3  this is the culture that we have to overcome.  That

          4  thinking, that has to be overcome.

          5                 MS. ORTEGA: If I could just make one

          6  comment on terms of advocacy, as well.  A lot of the

          7  comments that I heard this morning by the

          8  administration, address that they are doing a lot

          9  and there are programs that are already in place.

         10  The problem is that the administration does not

         11  understand that human rights and civil rights are

         12  not necessarily the same thing.  Human rights is a

         13  lot broader.  So their human rights commission has a

         14  very particular mandate, and it is a narrow mandate,

         15  and it is not proactive, and it does not mandate

         16  that you have participation by those affected in the

         17  policy making process, as I can understand, there is

         18  no mandate for that in any City law.  So I think

         19  that we need to really understand that there are,

         20  this is very different in terms of what we are

         21  asking than what the administration already has in

         22  place.  And if the bodies that they have in place

         23  were doing their job, we would not have this long

         24  list of lawsuits and reports that we have.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you all
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          2  very much for the work that you do and for sharing

          3  with us your very important testimony, and we will

          4  stay in touch with you as things move forward.

          5                 Bob Perry, Wanda Williams, Brett

          6  Koch, Maf Misbah Uddin, got it?

          7                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Witnesses,

          8  do you swear or affirm that the testimony that you

          9  are about to give this committee is the truth the

         10  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         11                 MR. PERRY: I do.

         12                 MS. WILLIAMS: I do.

         13                 MR. KOCH: I do.

         14                 MR. UDDIN: I do.

         15                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Very good.

         16  Please identify yourself before you summarize your

         17  testimony, and we can begin with Mr. Perry.

         18                 MR. PERRY: Good afternoon.  At first

         19  I want to commend Council Member Perkins for

         20  introducing the bill.  He has been a champion of

         21  civil rights and civil liberties, and I am pleased,

         22  but not surprised to see him leading the way in

         23  introducing human rights into our local law.

         24                 I think the great innovation of this

         25  legislation has been well articulated.  I think what
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          2  I want to add to this is, is that the practical

          3  innovation of the bill, is that in its structure and

          4  procedure of implementation, these great principals

          5  of human rights, are put in the service of a common

          6  sense approach to good governance.  To put it

          7  simply, the Proposed Human Rights Government

          8  Operations Law, institutionalized fairness and

          9  equity as affirmative principals of local

         10  government, that means in rule making, in budgeting,

         11  in planning, and policies, and practices, and

         12  systems, and operations.

         13                 So in light of these comments, I

         14  would like to address a few comments that were made

         15  earlier by Anthony Crowell, in his criticisms of the

         16  bill.  He opened by discussing an elaborate

         17  recitation of laws, rules, standards, agencies and

         18  departments that he thinks are sufficient to address

         19  issues of discrimination.  What he was

         20  characterizing though, and describing was, what is a

         21  top down, bureaucratic and largely defensive

         22  posture, to problems of discrimination.  I have

         23  colleagues who are progressive, thoughtful,

         24  reasonable people who are in City government.   When

         25  their agency becomes a defendant in a lawsuit, they
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          2  begin thinking and talking like corporate defense

          3  lawyers.  It is their job, their loyalty to their

          4  agency requires them to take on a role to defend

          5  conduct that they know is problematic, it is

          6  probably unlawful, is clearly reflective of problems

          7  in policies and practices, but because of the nature

          8  of the litigation process, the nature of being an

          9  advisory in the litigation process, they become

         10  loyal soldiers.

         11                 Mr. Crowell also seemed to place

         12  great hope in the City's Human Rights Commission.  I

         13  would refer the council to a report that was

         14  prepared by the Association of the Bar of the City

         15  of New York.  It is an exhausted examination of the

         16  Human Rights Commission.  It finds that agency

         17  largely ineffective, in addressing issues of

         18  discrimination.  This is not to impugn the

         19  competence of people in the Human Rights Commission.

         20  The agency is under funded, it is under staffed, it

         21  is overwhelmed, it has a back log of thousands of

         22  cases.  Rather than obviating the need for this

         23  bill, what the Human Rights Commission demonstrates,

         24  is the need for the bill.

         25                 A second point that Mr. Crowell made,
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          2  is that this legislation would have exposed the City

          3  to liability.  Now, that is a very curious argument,

          4  it seems to me.  Again, it seems to me

          5  characteristic of a government posture towards issue

          6  to discrimination, that is largely to the defensive,

          7  and reactionary. I think a good argument could be

          8  made, and I will provide one example in a moment.

          9  That good faith compliance with Intro 512, would go

         10  a long way to limiting liability exposure  And that

         11  has been discussed in some detail, but by other

         12  persons.

         13                 Mr. Crowell also suggested that

         14  Mayoral authority would be aggregated by this

         15  legislation.  The bill provides for the creation of

         16  an advisory committee and a task force.  The task

         17  force members are appointed by the Mayor, to the

         18  extent that the bill is not meant to in any way,

         19  implicitly explicitly aggregate the Mayor's

         20  executive authority, to the extent, they see that as

         21  a problem we would like to talk it through with

         22  them.  I do not think it exists, we can certainly

         23  find language to make that clear, that the Mayor has

         24  appointment power regarding the advisory committee.

         25                 Finally, Mr. Crowell closed by saying
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          2  that if, this is a rough approximation of his

          3  comment, if there are areas we are not addressing

          4  regarding discrimination, policies, or practices,

          5  let us work together to address them.  That is

          6  precisely what this bill does.  And under the

          7  existing regime of civil rights laws, that does not

          8  happen.  What is really creative about this bill, it

          9  is a bottom up inclusive transparent approach to

         10  trying to understand how discrimination works as a

         11  practical matter, and involving stakeholders in

         12  communities, persons who have been harmed by

         13  discrimination, bureaucrats in City offices,

         14  advocates, and experts, to try to think through a

         15  creative solution.

         16                 I am going to close by providing one

         17  illustration of a lawsuit that I think could have

         18  been avoided, had Intro 512 been in place.   In my

         19  submitted testimony, I provide three examples. I

         20  speak to the Minority and Women on Business

         21  Initiative that City council is now considering.  I

         22  talk about racial profiling in the police

         23  department, and the lack of the capacity to collect

         24  data on stop and frisk activity.

         25                 And finally, I speak to this case and
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          2  I will summarize it very quickly.  Under Federal

          3  legislation, the receipt of welfare benefits, is

          4  condition upon participation and certain work

          5  activities.  In New York, it is the City's Work

          6  Experience Program.  In a Federal lawsuit that was

          7  filed in 2000, four female WEP workers, this is how

          8  they are referred to, described an ongoing pattern

          9  of sexual harassment by their supervisors.  The

         10  harassment, in the complaint is described as

         11  aggressive, coercive and persistent.  The City moved

         12  to dismiss the complaint, arguing that the WEP

         13  workers were not entitled to protection of

         14  employees, against sexual harassment, under the

         15  Anti- Discrimination Provisions of Title Seven of

         16  the Civil Rights Act of 1964.  The City argued in

         17  effect, that the WEP workers were not technically

         18  employees. Therefore, they were not covered by the

         19  law.  Therefore the City was not liable.  The

         20  plaintiffs prevailed on this issue, this narrow

         21  issue, and the litigation preceded on the merits of

         22  the claims, alleged.

         23                 Now, some five years later, the case

         24  still precedes. The process has delayed justice.  It

         25  has involved the City in defending conduct that is
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          2  indefensible.  The litigation has cost the City

          3  hundreds of thousands of dollars, and the City will

          4  quite likely be liable for much more in costs and

          5  settlement payments before the case concludes.

          6                 Had Intro 512 been in place, a

          7  strategy for identifying an alternative strategy for

          8  identifying and remedying the alleged

          9  discrimination, would have been very different.

         10  Allegations of harassment would have been

         11  investigated, hiring and training of investigators

         12  would have been reviewed, complaint procedures would

         13  have been reassessed, and the WEP workers would have

         14  been empowered, rather than being further victimized

         15  by the City's assuming a posture of legal advisory.

         16                 It is conceivable under the 512

         17  framework, that new policies regarding sexual

         18  harassment might have been promulgated, along with

         19  clear, disciplinary sanctions for violating the

         20  policies.  In this alternative scenario, the lessons

         21  learned by the Human Resources Administration, which

         22  was culpable, ultimately, for this practice, there

         23  might have been a policy that became a model for

         24  sexual harassment issues, and that model might have

         25  been a prototype than for other departments and

                                                            142

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  agencies.  This is, I think, what we are looking to

          3  see come out of this legislation.

          4                 So there are many of thousands of

          5  stories like this. It is NYCLU's position that this

          6  bill can have a meaningful effect in realizing the

          7  promise of human rights.  Thank you.

          8                 MS. WILLIAMS: Good afternoon.  My

          9  name is Wanda Williams.  I am the Director of

         10  Political Action and Legislation for DC37.  I would

         11  like to thank you, Chairman Perkins, for your

         12  leadership and vision on the Introduction of 512, in

         13  addition to the people who have joined you as co-

         14  sponsors of this legislation, for your vision and

         15  your leadership.  I would also like to begin my

         16  comments talking about DC37, in terms of it being

         17  the largest municipal labor union here in New York

         18  City, representing over 121,000 members and 50,000

         19  retirees. Individuals who make on average of $30

         20  thousand dollars a year, who serve in over 1,000

         21  titles throughout every agency in New York City, 85

         22  percent of whom are members of, residents, excuse

         23  me, of this City, as a condition of employment, 75

         24  percent of whom are women of color, primarily

         25  African- American women and Hispanic women.  But we
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          2  applaud you in this Introduction of this legislation

          3  512A, as we believe that this is good public policy.

          4    We believe that the adoption of this legislation

          5  will begin the process of concretely demystifying

          6  the complex and ambiguous process of data

          7  collection, analysis, and dissemination, by the very

          8  participatory model of inclusion, set out on the

          9  provisions of the legislation.

         10                 As a unit, as a union who has sought

         11  and seeks information relative to specification of

         12  the City's work force, its development, expansion,

         13  and promotional opportunities, we welcome the

         14  legislative intent of this bill.

         15                 By incorporating the human rights

         16  framework as a principal of governance, we believe

         17  that the opportunities for real investigative and

         18  empirical data, would serve the City, its work

         19  force, and the citizens of New York well.  As you

         20  well know, numbers  and their representations, speak

         21  volumes.  Without them, we can presume, assume, and

         22  even hypothesize.  Intro 512A will allow us to

         23  quantitatively substantiate things that we as a

         24  union know exist.

         25                 Access to information is critical.
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          2  This legislation encourages openness, fairness, and

          3  it offers opportunity for equity.  As City workers,

          4  this bill will allow us the opportunity to challenge

          5  the discriminatory practices that undermine the

          6  merit and fitness provisions of the Civil Service

          7  System.  It also allows us to unveil the use of what

          8  we have seen as a union, what I call "Managerial

          9  Prerogative", which is used to marginalize our

         10  members, and the marginalization tactics that are

         11  used against our employees, which results in

         12  disparities in hiring, and allows us to begin the

         13  process of breaking through the glass ceiling that

         14  exists throughout the City of New York.

         15                 For this reason, we ask that you

         16  adopt this legislation in the interest of all New

         17  Yorkers.  Thank you.

         18                 MR. UDDIN: Good evening.  My name is

         19  Maf Misbah Uddin, Treasurer District Council 37,

         20  President Local 1407, New York City Accountants,

         21  Statisticians and Actuaries.

         22                 Mr. Chairman, Bill Perkins, proud to

         23  be knowing you, members of the Governmental

         24  Operations Committee of the New York City Council, I

         25  thank you for inviting me here today to speak in
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          2  support of Intro 512, the Human Rights and

          3  Government Operations Audit Law.

          4                 I address you as the President of

          5  Local 1407.  There are few people in a better

          6  position than our members, to speak to the question

          7  of whether the provisions of Intro 512 can be put

          8  into place in the City of New York.  Intro 512 seeks

          9  to bring more fairness into the way City services

         10  and City employment policies are carried out.  It

         11  will do this by requiring City departments to

         12  conduct audits of their policies, and data

         13  collection mechanisms, and then to develop actions

         14  plans to address the problems, identified during the

         15  audit process.  Local 1407 fully support these

         16  items.  As City workers, we want to be treated

         17  fairly.  As City residents, we want to know that

         18  everyone is getting their fair share of resources

         19  and services.  As taxpayers, we want this City to be

         20  efficient and we do not want our money wasted on

         21  programs that do not work.

         22                 We believe that there is room for

         23  improvement in the way the City conducts its

         24  business, and that part of the City's business is to

         25  develop standards, and keep track of how well it is
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          2  doing in all of its work.  As professionals, who

          3  work with members and numbers every day, we know

          4  that numbers tell an important story, and that

          5  without them, there is no way to understand or solve

          6  a problem.  We are very serious about our jobs.

          7                 Intro 512 is not asking the City to

          8  do anything more complicated, than it already does.

          9  The City already conducts audits.  It does this

         10  every day.  Local 1407 members know this because we

         11  are the ones who carry out these audits.  We want to

         12  help implement Intro 512 in the smoothest way

         13  possible, by building the human rights audit that it

         14  requires into work, that is already being done.

         15                 Let me give you an example of how we

         16  can increase the knowledge and the standards of the

         17  work the City is now doing, without creating a huge

         18  new infrastructure.  In the City's Correction

         19  Department, Management Auditors, represented by this

         20  Local, perform general auditing together with

         21  compliance auditing of Federal mandates.  This

         22  entails being present in the inmate's areas as early

         23  2:00 a. M. In the morning, to make sure the inmates

         24  are properly treated, including the inspection of

         25  meals, as to both quality and temperature.  If
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          2  anything fails to reach the Federal mandated

          3  standards during their audit, they will ask

          4  management to take immediate corrective action to

          5  remedy the situation.  In some cases they will send

          6  their recommendation to the higher authorities, to

          7  take necessary actions.  Since the implementation of

          8  this auditing program, the amount of Federal fines

          9  has been reduce dramatically in the department.

         10  Clearly, the same approach, I am sure, will work in

         11  implementing Intro 512, without imposing a

         12  substantial burden on the government's daily

         13  operations.

         14                 In closing, I want to say again, that

         15  the City workers who spend their days crunching the

         16  numbers, are behind Intro 512.  We know firsthand

         17  the value of good data collection, and we appreciate

         18  when data is used for purposes of efficiency and

         19  equity.  We urge you to vote for Intro 512, and we

         20  look forward to helping to put the new law to work,

         21  for the citizens of this great City.  I say thank

         22  you.

         23                 MR. KOCH: Good afternoon.  My name is

         24  Brett Koch and I am the Assistant to the Executive

         25  Vice President of Local 1549. I am here on behalf of
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          2  Local 1549 President, Eddie Rodriguez, Executive

          3  Vice President Lenora Gates, and the more than

          4  18,000 members we represent.

          5                 I join my colleagues in support of

          6  this important human rights legislation, Intro 512.

          7                 Local 1549 has a highly diversified

          8  membership, in mainly entry level clerical,

          9  administrative positions, in the various City

         10  agencies.  Our members work is vital to the

         11  effective day to day operation of this great City.

         12  It is also important to note that the vast majority

         13  of our members live, shop, and raise their families

         14  in New York City.  And therefore, have a vested

         15  interest in both their occupation, and their City.

         16                 Local 1549 and District Council 37

         17  have always been in the forefront of the battle to

         18  end discriminatory and exclusionary employment

         19  practices.

         20                 I now offer one such example.  In

         21  1968, the City of New York created the Police

         22  Administrative Aide title, in order to maximize

         23  resources, while reducing costs in the New York City

         24  Police Department.

         25                 New York City Police Officers are
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          2  trained to perform patrol and enforcement duties,

          3  and do it magnificently.  However, thousands of full

          4  duty able bodied officers are regularly assigned to

          5  purely clerical administrative duties.

          6                 Police Administrative Aides and

          7  Senior Police Administrative Aides excel throughout

          8  the department.  In 1995, Local 1549 filed a Reverse

          9  Out of Title grievance, and years of hard work, much

         10  of it by our shop stewards and members, resulted in

         11  a decision in September 2004, affirming the union's

         12  claim.  Three thousand five hundred full duty

         13  officers, in various ranks, were identified as

         14  performing strictly clerical duties.

         15                 In his decision, the Arbitrator ruled

         16  that, the Police Commissioner shall immediate cease

         17  and assist from assigning the duties at issue,

         18  clerical/administrative, to police personnel of

         19  various ranks.  The Police Commissioner shall

         20  forthwith assign PAA's and SPAA's to perform those

         21  duties.

         22                 At one time there were about 6,000

         23  PAA's and Senior PAA's.  Now the number is only

         24  2800, less than half.  No PAA has been hired in two

         25  years.
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          2                 By assigning full duty police

          3  officers, who are mainly white and male, and in many

          4  cases non residents of New York City, the New York

          5  City Police Department has effectively eliminated at

          6  least 4,000 opportunities for entry level positions,

          7  to those most in need of employment opportunity.

          8                 It is also important to note that

          9  this same practice is taking place in the

         10  Corrections, Fire, and Sanitation Departments, and

         11  undoubtedly, in other areas throughout the City.

         12                 Local 1549 is confident, that

         13  enactment of Intro 512, would go a long way in

         14  eradicating unfair employment practices, and provide

         15  greater employment opportunity for those who need it

         16  most.

         17                 Thank you Councilman Perkins, for

         18  this opportunity and I will be happy to address any

         19  questions.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you.

         21  Thank you all for your testimony and for your

         22  patience, and for the work that you do. I have two

         23  quick questions.  One is, it appears as if this law

         24  is good for the civil service system.  Just based on

         25  the testimony the three of you have given, it seems
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          2  as if, in fact, is a good law, because of the civil

          3  service system, that has already in place, some of

          4  the mechanisms that would be useful towards

          5  implementing this law, and addressing in a proactive

          6  way, the concerns that this law, the discrimination,

          7  that this law is talking about.  Is that a fair

          8  assessment?

          9                 MS. WILLIAMS: I would say that I

         10  think that it is good for the civil service system

         11  if the, when implemented, when passed and

         12  implemented, and it is beginning the process of

         13  being executed, it enhances the current civil

         14  service system in the sense that it enforces what is

         15  there already.  We see this as an opportunity to

         16  make sure that there is enforcement of current civil

         17  service law, because in the specific provision of

         18  the annual report, having that data information, one

         19  of the problems that has existed with the current

         20  civil service system, has been that the information

         21  does not come officially from City agencies.  It is

         22  coming from our workers, and the work that we do,

         23  trying to put that data together.  By having the

         24  information of this law, we would be able to have

         25  that data that is official New York City government
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          2  data, as opposed to our created data, which would be

          3  able to make us make the case, their case.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Anyone else?

          5                 MR. UDDIN: We know that the civil

          6  service system that gives civilian jobs for job

          7  title, you take an exam.  You pass the exam, you get

          8  onto the list, you are on the list for four years,

          9  the list dies, you die with it.  Who are these

         10  people? These are the minority people.  These are

         11  the Blacks.  These are the Asians.  These are the

         12  Latinos.

         13                 Last year alone, my Local brought six

         14  jobs to the City. Due to that reason, they hired 428

         15  people from the civil service list in different

         16  titles.  Eighty percent of those are minorities.

         17  Now, they may claim that they are doing this

         18  diversity within this system, they only did what I

         19  brought them in to do because of Article 78.  These

         20  Intro 512 will do the same thing, it will encourage

         21  them, enforce them, or we, those who are out there,

         22  will be able to take advantage of this by which it

         23  then will go unimplemented.  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: One last

         25  question on the legal side.  The administration
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          2  claims that this is some sort of violation of their

          3  rights, in terms of separation of powers, so to

          4  speak.  Would you speak to that, Mr. Perry?

          5                 MR. PERRY: This was the issue that I

          6  referred to earlier that Mr. Crowell addressed.  He

          7  suggested there was some diminution of executive

          8  authority by creating this Advisory Committed, the

          9  Human Rights Advisory Committee, or Task Force.  And

         10  the bill, as drafted, explicitly says, the Mayor

         11  appoints the members to the task force.  I do not

         12  understand what the problem is, to the extent there

         13  is one, I think it can easily be addressed, if they

         14  can articulate it, with more detail than it was this

         15  morning.  I mean, we have addressed this problem

         16  before in the creation of the Civil and Complaint

         17  Review Board, regarding the executive authority.

         18  There was a litigation over that very issue, and the

         19  CCRB works under a similar kind of appointment power

         20  of civilians to a board.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you all

         22  very much, once again, for your testimony and the

         23  good work you do on behalf of this City.

         24                 Vanessa David, Edward Bailey, Kathy

         25  Rodgers, Pauline Park.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Witnesses,

          3  do you swear or affirm that the testimony that you

          4  will give to this committee will be the truth, the

          5  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

          6                 MS. DAVID: I do.

          7                 MR. BAILEY: I do.

          8                 MS. RODGERS: I do.

          9                 MS. PARK: I do.

         10                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Okay, Ms.

         11  David, why do we not begin with you?

         12                 MS. DAVID: Okay, thank you.  I am

         13  just going to read right through it, I know we do

         14  not have a lot of time, okay?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Please do.

         16                 MS. DAVID: My name is Vanessa David

         17  and I want to thank the council for asking me to

         18  testify today.

         19                 From May 1998 to February 1999, I

         20  worked as a laborer for the City Department of

         21  Education, Division of Trucking. My job was to load

         22  sheet rock, drywall, plywood and other construction

         23  materials into trucks, and deliver them on to school

         24  construction sites.  I have extensive background in

         25  construction, so I like my job.  I was good at it.
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          2                 In addition to being a laborer, I am

          3  a woman, an African- American, and a lesbian.  Out

          4  of the 45 employees at the Division of Trucking, I

          5  was one of the only three African Americans, and I

          6  was the only woman in my position.  As I said, I

          7  like my job.  I was comfortable in it.  However, the

          8  supervisor of my shop was not comfortable with me.

          9  He called my attention, he called my attention to my

         10  race and my gender, by calling me "gal". He called

         11  my attention to my sexuality by telling people she

         12  likes what we like, and making comments about fur

         13  burgers.  He also marked two black rats with the

         14  initials of our union shop steward, who is also

         15  African- American, and kept them on his desk in his

         16  office.  After a few months on the job, he told me

         17  my performance was just fine.  But after nine

         18  months, he terminated me with no notice.

         19                 I knew my performance was good, so in

         20  February 1999, I filed a complaint with the City

         21  Human Rights Commission. Nineteen of my co- workers

         22  filed a petition saying that I was good at my job.

         23  And my shop stewards also stood up on my behalf.

         24  But after investigators started looking at my case,

         25  and told the Department of Education he thought it
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          2  was likely that they discriminated against me, the

          3  department wrote an angry letter to the Human Rights

          4  Commission, and they took that investigator off the

          5  case.  Then it sat on a lawyer's desk for two years,

          6  before they finally ruled against me in September

          7   '03.

          8                 I took my case to the New York State

          9  Supreme Court, representing myself, and Judge Alice

         10  Schlesinger found that the Human Rights Commission

         11  had not done any meaningful investigation at all.

         12  She said, frankly, it is hard to refrain from

         13  finding here that Ms. David experienced

         14  discrimination at the hands of the commission

         15  itself, the agency whose mandate is to protect

         16  individuals from discrimination by others.

         17                 I wish I could tell you that after

         18  that, the commission investigated my case properly.

         19  But, when we went to the commission for my

         20  interview, they were unprepared and rude to me. When

         21  I told them that being called "gal" made me feel

         22  uncomfortable, they told me a judge would not buy

         23  it.  And it is not like calling a black man, "boy".

         24  When I pointed out how few African- American

         25  employees there were, they told me that this was
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          2  unconvincing, because it is common in City agencies,

          3  that certain trades belong to the Irish, and some to

          4  the Italians.  They asked me why, as a women, why I

          5  would want to stay in the construction field.  They

          6  made me feel like I brought my situation on myself,

          7  by telling some of my co- workers, in private, that

          8  I am a lesbian.

          9                 My story shows that the current

         10  system is not stopping discrimination in New York

         11  City.  It has been six years since the Department of

         12  Education fired me.  Even with the support of my

         13  union, my supervisor still has his job.  The

         14  commission still is not investigating my case, and I

         15  probably have a three year court battle left.

         16                 I believe that the Intro 512 could

         17  have prevented many of these problems.  My

         18  supervisor knew that most people would not pursue a

         19  complaint against him, that would drag on for six

         20  years and more.  What we need is for the City to

         21  take responsibility for itself, to regularly look at

         22  the numbers and ask how it could be doing better.

         23  What we need, what we need is for the City to, oh

         24  excuse me, I read that already.  Rather than allow a

         25  certain trade to be kept for the Irish, the
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          2  Italians, men only, or any particular group, they

          3  should be promoting the rights of everyone who is

          4  qualified for the job, to have an equal chance.  I

          5  do a good job, I should have a right to do City's

          6  work, okay?

          7                 By passing intro 512, the City

          8  council can keep what happened to me from happening

          9  to other people.  Thank you.

         10                 MS. RODGERS: Hello and thank you for

         11  inviting Legal Momentum to testify today.  My name

         12  is Christina Brandt Young, and I am reading the

         13  testimony of Kathy Rodgers, the President of Legal

         14  Momentum, who had to depart earlier, in order to

         15  meet another obligation.

         16                 Legal Momentum is now celebrating its

         17  35th Anniversary.  We are the nation's oldest Civil

         18  Rights Organization devoted to advancing women's

         19  rights.  We have throughout, been at the forefront

         20  of innovative public policy and impact litigation to

         21  end employment discrimination against women.  We are

         22  very familiar with both the power, and the limits of

         23  our current legal system.

         24                 As you have heard in prior testimony,

         25  intersectionality (sic.) is a concept embodied in
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          2  this law.  And it refers to the deep dis- rooted

          3  (sic.) and discriminatory behaviors that often

          4  overlap and reinforce each other, bias compounds.

          5  Ms. David is a perfect example of this, as an

          6  African- American, as a woman, and as a lesbian.  On

          7  any of those counts, she would have had a strike

          8  against her in the construction industry.  But in

          9  this case, she had three.  And she was harassed on

         10  all of those grounds and ultimately fired, because

         11  of all of those things.

         12                 San Francisco has been very

         13  successful in using its CEDAW based legislation to

         14  come up with employment practices to promote the

         15  equality of women, people of color, and lesbians,

         16  just like Vanessa.  For instance, they have come up

         17  with a women's support group, flex time for child

         18  care, more job training courses, and a women

         19  engineers' caucus.  In New York City, the City might

         20  decide to place on site independent monitors at each

         21  of its construction sites, to supervise hiring, and

         22  to receive harassment complaints, and also to offer

         23  pre- apprenticeship training to women in minorities

         24  to increase their numbers.

         25                 I will refer you now to our written

                                                            160

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  testimony, but thank you for introducing this

          3  innovative law.

          4                 MS. PARKS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          5  I am testifying in these hearings on Intro 512 on

          6  behalf of NYAGRA, the New York Association for

          7  Gender Rights Advocacy, which is the first state

          8  wide trans- gender advocacy organization in New

          9  York.  As you know, we worked very closely with you

         10  as lead sponsor of Intro 24, the Trans- Gender

         11  Rights Bill, which the council enacted in April

         12  2002.

         13                 We have also been working with you

         14  and other council members on the DASA legislation,

         15  the Dignity in All Schools Act, a City' school bill,

         16  that the council passed over riding the Mayor's veto

         17  in September 2004.

         18                 What I would like to do is very

         19  briefly, elucidate a few lessons from the history of

         20  those two bills.  I think the lesson of the campaign

         21  for the DASA bill, the Safe Schools Bill, enacted in

         22  September, is that legislation that addresses

         23  multiple oppression, can in gender the support of

         24  multiple communities that can work in broad

         25  coalition.  For passage of that legislation and
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          2  equally importantly, for implementation of it, once

          3  enacted.

          4                 I think that the New York City Human

          5  Rights Initiative also represents an effort by a

          6  broad based coalition to make New York City

          7  government more responsive to the concerns of the

          8  many constituencies that this coalition represents,

          9  including women and people of color.

         10                 The lesson of the Trans- Gender

         11  Rights Law is that legislation can create

         12  opportunities for advocacy organizations, and

         13  community- based organizations, to work in

         14  cooperation with City agencies, to enhance human

         15  rights, and to approve access to City government.

         16  After the Mayor signed that bill into law in April

         17  2002, the Commission on Human Rights convened a

         18  working group of community members, of which I was

         19  one member, to work with commission staff to draft

         20  guidelines for implementation of the new statute.

         21  And the commission eventually adopted those

         22  regulations in December 2004.  That law, and those

         23  regulations, provide a model, for what Intro 512 can

         24  do for women and people of color.

         25                 I therefore urge this committee to
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          2  vote for the legislation.  I urge the speaker to

          3  bring the bill to the floor of the council for a

          4  vote.  I urge the council to pass it, and I

          5  certainly urge this Mayor to sign it into law.

          6  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: The failure of

          8  the present apparati (sic.), or apparatuses,

          9  obviously is evident in the fact that we are still

         10  receiving lawsuits and reports about discrimination.

         11    But I guess what underscores it even more, is your

         12  testimony that you were failed by the agency that

         13  was supposed to be serving you, that you felt

         14  discrimination by the agency that is supposed to be

         15  fighting discrimination.  Can you see how that

         16  situation either helps folks to participate and to

         17  file complaints, or how it discourages?  In other

         18  words, from that example, would you say the system

         19  in encouraging people or discouraging people?

         20  Is it a solution or a problem?

         21                 MS. DAVID: You are talking about the

         22  human rights? I think that they are a waste of time.

         23    I mean because I have been put through this for

         24  six years.  I had the Judge, I had to go to Supreme

         25  Court on my own.  The Judge remanded them to go back
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          2  to do a full and fair investigation, that is the

          3  third time.  And I am still waiting, and it is a

          4  shame.  And I am going to be damaged for the rest of

          5  my life, for this and justice should just be done

          6  for it, you know.  That is what I think.

          7                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I would also

          8  like to make a quick comment on those grounds.  I am

          9  a Plaintiff's Rights Attorney.  I do sex harassment

         10  cases.  I do trainings around the City.

         11                 The Anti- Discrimination Center of

         12  Metro New York, recently published a study showing

         13  that the New York City Human Rights Commission, had

         14  found no probable cause of discrimination in 2003 in

         15  over 98 percent of the cases that they investigated.

         16    They have, in my trainings, I have discovered that

         17  they have a terrifically bad reputation among people

         18  who are seeking help for discrimination.  Everyone

         19  knows that they are not helpful.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         21  much. I appreciate all of your testimony and we will

         22  be in touch.

         23                 Suki Ports, Susan Urban, Stan Mark,

         24  Virginia Shubert, Aarti Shahani, William Schulz.  I

         25  believe this is the last panel.  If I am wrong,
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          2  please let the Sergeant- at- Arms know right away,

          3  please.  Thank you.

          4                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Witnesses,

          5  do you swear or affirm that the testimony that you

          6  are about to give this committee will be the truth,

          7  the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

          8                 MS. PORTS: I do.

          9                 MS. URBAN: I do.

         10                 MR. MARK: I do.

         11                 MS. SHUBERT: I do.

         12                 MR. SHAHANI: I do.

         13                 MR. SCHULZ: I do.

         14                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Wonderful.

         15  Identify yourselves before you summarize your

         16  testimony please.

         17                 MS. PORTS: Suki Ports.  Thank you

         18  members of the City Council Governmental Operations

         19  Committee and Chairman Perkins.  It is an honor to

         20  be asked to speak with you today, this afternoon.

         21                 From the perspective of a New Yorker

         22  born here 70 years ago, I cannot imagine why a local

         23  law like 512A, was not created decades ago.  I

         24  applaud and thank all the people who have worked so

         25  many hours on something that is so complicated,
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          2  While many New Yorkers know of the incarceration of

          3  over 110,000 people of Japanese ancestry, both

          4  American citizens and those who may have been denied

          5  citizenship, as were other Asians.  I am aware of

          6  the lack of human rights in the case of my mother,

          7  who was placed under house arrest for the duration

          8  of World War II, and had to call the FBI for

          9  permission to leave our apartment.  She was not

         10  allowed to leave the State of New York.  However, my

         11  sister and I were taught early on, that we had an

         12  obligation to do something with our lives, which

         13  would see an end to this kind of calculated

         14  injustice.  Just last week, a very brave man, Fred

         15  Korimatsu, died after being in prison for fighting

         16  this incarceration of the Japanese.  However, seeing

         17  the damaging effects of wholesale removal of

         18  Japanese communities into individuals, he was one of

         19  the many who cautioned the United States against

         20  their zeal to pick up Iranian students, then Iraqis

         21  and Muslims.

         22                 I have seen many changes, and I have

         23  some words of caution for 512A.  To emphasize the

         24  need for being attentive in the development of the

         25  curricula needed to educate all of the City's staff
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          2  and the general public, Section 7- 806.

          3                 Once that curricula is developed, the

          4  trainers must receive guidance in their

          5  implementation.  Careful to note this, will be key

          6  in the understanding and translating a law into an

          7  every day way of operating in New York City.  This

          8  must then be interpreted and translated into every

          9  language, we are so fortunate to have spoken in New

         10  York City, for they represent all of the diverse

         11  people who live here, and for many, Intro 512A may

         12  be the key to their feeling welcome and wanting to

         13  become citizens.

         14                 My testimony is from the focus of a

         15  former school teacher who witnessed the health care

         16  her husband received with third party payment

         17  insurance as a teacher.  As he suffered a slow death

         18  from cancer, and the effects upon three children, as

         19  they became part of a single parented household,

         20  from ages two, ten and twelve.  The contrast was

         21  stark and heartbreaking, as I saw what happened to

         22  my neighbors in Harlem, as they became members and

         23  numbers in the AIDS pandemic.

         24                 The City council has been most

         25  supportive and creative in their response to the
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          2  AIDS crisis, and I thank them. However, there are

          3  some very serious breaks in this, and I have listed

          4  a whole list of how your 512 will be effected, or

          5  has infected and affected people with HIV, and I

          6  will not give them, because you have the written

          7  testimony.  But this is an example of how all of

          8  these issues, health care, education, family care,

          9  housing, employment, education, have been

         10  effectively used against the success of people of

         11  low income, to obtain all of those.  And it is a

         12  sense a form of genocide.

         13                 My original words of caution, as you

         14  implement 512A, is based upon witnessing life in New

         15  York City, and I shall give you one example of the

         16  threat of organizations losing funds or individuals

         17  being silenced, and the implication of well meaning

         18  budgetary allocations, being sabotaged.

         19                 Last year, the City council allocated

         20  funds for 188 organizations, including a majority of

         21  groups, serving the poor, the disenfranchised, and

         22  underserved in many disproportionately communities

         23  of color, in addition to those serving women, gay,

         24  lesbian, bisexual, trans- gender, immigrants.  The

         25  epidemic faces have not changed, they are just
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          2  becoming more visible and in greater numbers, being

          3  recognized as being at risk.  The epidemic is now

          4  more of communities of color, than it is of white,

          5  but within the communities of color there are still

          6  the invisible,  Too often, Asians and Pacific

          7  Islanders and Native Americans are relegated to that

          8   "other" category, and do not show up in the

          9  statistics, just under the New York City flag with

         10  the "other" in there.  I do not know how many of the

         11  young men in the room ever played Cowboys and

         12   "Others".  And there are also people who have, I am

         13  sure, in this room, gone out for fast food "other",

         14  in the last week.

         15                 To this day, the contracts for 188

         16  groups are due to end June 30th, but 12 percent have

         17  been registered, 12 percent, out of 188 contracts.

         18  So this is an example of the failure of what is in

         19  place now.  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: You have to

         21  press to turn it on.  Thank you.

         22                 MS. URBAN: Sorry.  Good afternoon.

         23  My name is Susan Urban.  I am currently a consultant

         24  on social work and domestic violence.  I want to

         25  thank Councilman Perkins and the Governmental
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          2  Operations Committee of the City Council, for the

          3  opportunity to speak in support of Intro 512, Human

          4  Rights GOAL.

          5                 From January 1997 until June of 2000,

          6  I served as the first domestic violence coordinator

          7  for the New York City Administration for Children's

          8  Services.  The Child Welfare Committee of the New

          9  York City Inter- Agency Task Force on Domestic

         10  Violence, had for several years, urged ACS to

         11  appoint a domestic violence coordinator, who would

         12  oversee the policy changes necessary for the agency

         13  to ensure the integration of knowledge about

         14  domestic violence into all Child Welfare practice.

         15  While some staff of the Child Welfare Agency had

         16  collaborated with domestic violence advocates since

         17  1988 on finding common ground to insure better

         18  service to women and children, there had been no

         19  agency- wide initiative to ensure compliance with

         20  effective strategies for protecting the victims of

         21  domestic violence, and her or his children, while

         22  holding the abuser accountable.

         23                 Working with the Urban Justice

         24  Center, there had been a successful pilot to

         25  increase workers ability to identify domestic
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          2  violence, in one part of the Manhattan field office

          3  in 1993.  But no further work was done, despite

          4  advocates trying to push the system to make this

          5  more system- wide.  The advocates were convinced

          6  that domestic violence was a crucial component of

          7  many Child Welfare cases, and the data from the

          8  pilot supported this belief.

          9                 The Domestic Violence Community

         10  advocated universal screening for domestic violence

         11  on all cases.  It wanted policies reviewed on every

         12  aspect of the agency.  And some of examples are

         13  given in my written testimony.  Domestic Violence

         14  Advocates also decried the common child protective

         15  services response to domestic violence, of charging

         16  the mother, victim mother, of neglecting her

         17  children, by failing to protect them, even if the

         18  children were not themselves victims of child abuse,

         19  but had been in the home when violence occurred.

         20                 Attorneys working with these women,

         21  felt that the number of women losing their children

         22  to foster care, was increasing, and that these women

         23  were being blamed for their own abuse.

         24                 Soon after, a new commissioner was

         25  appointed in 1996.  The agency's focus was on
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          2  creating a reform plan, addressing previous

          3  shortcomings in child protective services, which had

          4  led to a child fatality.  His office refused

          5  repeated requests to meet with domestic violence

          6  advocates, during the year that this plan was being

          7  prepared.  When it was published to great acclaim,

          8  and publicity, there was no mention of domestic

          9  violence.

         10                 My efforts, as well as the efforts of

         11  the advocates to give specifics to the

         12  commissioner's office on how the agency needed to

         13  change, were for the most part, disregarded.

         14  Despite repeated requests for collaboration, ACS

         15  defended its position, either denying the children

         16  were removed from mothers for failing to protect

         17  them, and not collecting the data in order to see

         18  what, in fact, was happening.  Or justifying the

         19  removal, by citing the potential danger to the

         20  children,

         21                 It is my strong belief that the

         22  agency's reluctance to work with advocates to

         23  establish effective ways of getting to the root

         24  cause of many child neglect and abuse cases, without

         25  punishing the victim, led to the finding of a
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          2  lawsuit in Federal Court, The Nicholson Case.  After

          3  several years, advocates who believed that clients

          4  were suffering irreparable harm, because of ACS

          5  policies, felt that they had no other choice, than

          6  to pursue litigation.

          7                 I support the Human Rights in

          8  Government Operations Audit Law as a useful remedy

          9  for City government an interested party, to work

         10  together toward common goals.  Had a commitment of

         11  the kind of collaborative process incorporated in

         12  this law been in place, perhaps the lengthy, bitter

         13  and time consuming litigation could have been

         14  avoided.  Thank you.

         15                 MS. ROTHSCHILD: Good afternoon.  I am

         16  Cynthia Rothschild of Amnesty International USA's

         17  Board of Director and it is with great pleasure that

         18  I address you today on behalf of Dr. William Shulz,

         19  the Executive Director of AIUSA, and I extend a warm

         20  thank you to Council Member Perkins and your teams

         21  for supporting this project.

         22                 As one of the largest membership

         23  based grassroots human rights organizations in the

         24  world, Amnesty mobilizes support for ratification

         25  and implementation of a range of human rights,
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          2  principals, and instruments, including CEDAW and

          3  CERD.  These U.N. Conventions provide the heart and

          4  soul of the Human Rights GOAL Project, which as we

          5  have said for the first time anywhere, blends CEDAW

          6  and CERD in local application of Human Rights

          7  Treaties, and this approach is an innovative

          8  contribution to building a culture of human rights

          9  in New York City.  And we have been proud to be a

         10  supporter of this project for the last three or so

         11  years.

         12                 Our movement rests on foundational

         13  principals of International Human Rights,

         14  universality, interdependence, and inter

         15  relatedness.  Many of you are possibly aware of our

         16  work, because of our commitment to investigating and

         17  documenting human rights abuses around the world, no

         18  matter where they occur, even when those abuses take

         19  place in our own backyard, in fact, that being New

         20  York City.

         21                 Obviously we are here to speak to the

         22  merits of this proposed legislation that brings the

         23  human rights principals of a quality and non

         24  discrimination, which I would argue given some of

         25  what we heard this morning from a representative of
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          2  the Mayor's office, are principals that were

          3  positioned, as apparently new rights.  As far as I

          4  understand, equality and discrimination are not

          5  particularly new in the landscape of human rights

          6  analysis.  In fact, they are fundamental, and have

          7  been for many decades to human rights thinking, and

          8  advocacy.

          9                 I can think of no time in recent

         10  history when those principals of equality and non-

         11  discrimination have been more salient, and when the

         12  need for the commitment to those principals in local

         13  governance has been more pressing.  At a political

         14  moment, when the human rights framework itself, is

         15  under attack, in various ways, including through

         16  rhetoric denying the significance of the human

         17  rights paradigm, including through naming it as too

         18  expansive or not concrete, or creating rights that

         19  seem irrelevant or replicating, that which exists

         20  already.

         21                 It becomes critical at this precise

         22  moment for activists, Federal and City government

         23  officials, other social justice organizations, and

         24  Amnesty itself, to recommit to supporting creative

         25  efforts, such as the GOAL Initiative that bring
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          2  human rights home.

          3                 Human rights as a political and legal

          4  framework, obviously, is too often seen by many

          5  people within the U.S. as a paradigm, useful only

          6  for those outside of U.S. boarders.  I think all of

          7  us can attest to the fact that human rights is not a

          8  context from which only others can benefit, and

          9  there is clearly meaning here in New York City.

         10                 As part of a growing trend among

         11  groups within and outside the United States, Amnesty

         12  has increasingly been engaged in putting forth

         13  vibrant critiques of various U.S. and local

         14  policies. We have challenged the lack of

         15  accountability, that allows these violations to

         16  transpire with impunity.  In addition to some of our

         17  work on Abu Ghraib and Guantanamo, and with more

         18  local application, we have lobbied against aspects

         19  of the U.S. Patriot Act because of its

         20  discriminatory and arbitrary provisions, which are

         21  often targeted at immigrants, poor people, and

         22  people of color throughout the United States.  And

         23  in fact, within New York City, we have protested the

         24  suspension of due process for and random and

         25  discriminatory detention of women, men and children,
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          2  often based on appearance alone.  And in the name of

          3  security, we have addressed police brutality, in

          4  particular against people of color, and against

          5  lesbian, gay, bisexual and trans- gender

          6  communities, as well as the shackling of pregnant

          7  women in U.S. prisons, even during child birth.  We

          8  are currently conducting research on women and

          9  domestic violence, in relation to welfare and

         10  housing.

         11                 All of these issues have great

         12  pertinence to New York City.  It is precisely in

         13  this political moment, when we must work tirelessly

         14  to create that culture of rights, of human rights

         15  within the United States.  It is precisely now when

         16  we must re invigorate our efforts to challenge you

         17  as acceptionalism (sic.) By fostering a human rights

         18  culture that values accountability, transparency,

         19  and good governance, that favors partnerships and

         20  collaboration, that affirmatively promotes equality

         21  and non discrimination.

         22                 Amnesty believes that Human Rights

         23  GOAL or Intro 512, is a pioneering and coalition

         24  based approach to New York City governments, that

         25  has these values at its core.
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          2                 If only it were enough to delineate

          3  the range of human rights issues that we in this

          4  room care deeply about, but naming the death of

          5  human rights problems, does not make them go away.

          6  The challenge we face, is creating human rights

          7  tools for government officials and activists alike,

          8  both to remedy, and preclude abuses, even at the

          9  City level.  New York City's efforts to blend the

         10  anti- discrimination and equality principals of

         11  CEDAW and CERD, as well as in the linking of gender

         12  and race, in the Human Rights GOAL Project, make a

         13  ground breaking contribution to the growing body of

         14  local level, and innovative use of human rights

         15  standards.  We encourage your enthusiastic support

         16  for this human rights initiative.  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I thank you all

         18  very much.  You are the last panel, but surely not

         19  the least.  I am struck by Ms. Ports, your testimony

         20  related to the service delivery disparities,

         21  particularly since I know that we have had to

         22  address that, particularly with it came to HIV and

         23  AIDS in communities of color. That was one of the

         24  first initiatives that I, myself, embarked on, as a

         25  result of being informed by the advocates in that
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          2  field, that the district that I represented,

          3  Northern Manhattan, was the pandemic epicenter for

          4  the problem of HIV/AIDS, and that there was a

          5  misinformation, that in fact, the problem was

          6  primarily in the areas of, only in the areas of

          7  Chelsea, and in the areas of the Village.  The

          8  traditional gay men problem that most folks,

          9  government as well, including my colleagues, were

         10  under the impression, the mis- impression.  And I

         11  know that as a result of hearings on the matter, in

         12  which you and others testified, we were able to get

         13  an initiative that redirected the dollars to where

         14  the needs were.  Not that it took the dollars away

         15  from anyone else, but in fact, what we began to

         16  realize, that we needed to be more inclusive, in

         17  terms of the resources that we were spending to

         18  address the problem.  So one might say, we were

         19  unwittingly ignoring that aspect of the problem, and

         20  now, at least we know better, whether we are doing

         21  much better is another question, because since we

         22  were able to get that first amount of money to

         23  address the problem, particularly for those

         24  organizations of color that are addressing it, we

         25  seen some pull back on the part of the
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          2  administration.  So I am reminded once again by your

          3  testimony, of how important the service component,

          4  the service delivery component of this legislation

          5  is.  In fact, in many respects, one might say it is

          6  the most important component, because the $50

          7  billion dollars that we use in our budget, is not

          8  all for jobs, it is not all for contracts.  Frankly,

          9  it is ultimately all for services.  And if those

         10  services are not directed fairly, then we are really

         11  perpetrating a great crime, if you will, on the

         12  citizens whose tax dollars are actually being used

         13  to provide those services.  It is ironic, your tax

         14  dollars that you are paying to receive the services,

         15  are not being directed towards you.  You are paying

         16  for others to get services that to which you are

         17  entitled to as well. So, yes.

         18                 MS. PORTS: I was concerned about the

         19  time so I did not read a lot of my testimony, but I

         20  would like to include one bit in the record, which I

         21  know will include the rest of it.  But school

         22  personnel are still not proficient in developing and

         23  providing  curriculum, in the issues of AIDS care,

         24  in every single public high school.  They are

         25  mandated by the State to have six classes a year.
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          2  They are not being given.  It does not take rocket

          3  scientry (sic.) To understand why there is a sudden

          4  increase in the cases of youths with AIDS.  Now the

          5  Department of Education says it is very expensive to

          6  take teachers out of the classroom, and have

          7  substitutes to develop their proficiency in teaching

          8  about AIDS. I would ask you, how we can equate the

          9  expense of taking a teacher out of the classroom,

         10  with preventing a life threatening disease for one

         11  child, let alone the thousands that come out of the

         12  New York City school system?  And those are mostly

         13  children of color. And I have gone through, I have

         14  sort of ranted through my whole testimony which I

         15  will spare you of now.  But I think it is an example

         16  of how when we are told there is a system in place,

         17  it is not working, and that is why I am emphasize

         18  the need for your developing a curriculum for this

         19  law, and developing a way to train the people, and

         20  have it written in before you start, or it will be

         21  sabotaged.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         23  much.  I believe the San Francisco panel alerted us

         24  to that possibility, because they actually engaged

         25  in some serious training.
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          2                 This is, as I pointed out, the

          3  concluding panel of the Governmental Operations

          4  Committee Public Hearing on Intro 512A, the Human

          5  Rights In Government Operations Audit Law.  This is

          6  a new law, and in what we have tried to do today,

          7  was to look at this law in terms of the value of the

          8  human rights model.  We have tried to look at this

          9  law in terms of applying this human rights standard,

         10  locally.  In terms of the systemic problems that

         11  need a comprehensive solution, by comparison to the

         12  piece meal kinds of solutions that we have been

         13  getting, that have proven to be fruitless and in

         14  fact, quite aggravating of the problems, as we have

         15  heard in some of the testimony.

         16                 The testimony has also looked at a

         17  proactive approach to eliminating discrimination in

         18  service provision, employment policies, in

         19  budgeting, particularly looking at institutional

         20  approaches to promoting equality and what makes them

         21  work.  The system- wide approach to racial

         22  discrimination was looked at, in terms of the New

         23  Jersey Supreme Court System.  We looked at

         24  transforming consciousness, transforming action,

         25  diversity training that must be linked to practices
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          2  of governance.

          3                 We wanted to take a look at better

          4  data and improved transparency, and the difficulties

          5  of accessing data on problems of concern to New York

          6  City Latino communities.  We looked into the input

          7  into policy making for advocates and employees.

          8  Litigation should not be advocates exclusive avenue

          9  for changing bad policy. In fact, quite the

         10  opposite, we would like to see litigation end, and

         11  we would like to see this legislation be sort of the

         12  death nail to the litigation, because it will have

         13  proven itself to be effective, and we will no longer

         14  need litigation.

         15                 You know, we were honored that Mayor

         16  Dinkins joined us, and in joining us he offered us a

         17  way that we can do better in striving for equality

         18  in City governance by the model that he used when he

         19  was the Mayor, which unfortunately was a model that

         20  was a Mayor's mandate.  And such a mandate,

         21  unfortunately falls out of favor, when the next

         22  Mayor comes into business, and in that case, that is

         23  what happened, and that was evident by the fact that

         24  the council did a report on diversity, or rather the

         25  disparities, in contracting amongst minorities and
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          2  women, and found a serious decline in that area,

          3  since Mayor Dinkins was in office.  We realize

          4  therefore, that this legislation is justified from

          5  that point of view, as well.

          6                 The San Francisco model was offered,

          7  which was a model for applying to human rights

          8  standards locally, and bringing CEDAW standards to

          9  San Francisco was discussed.  The objectives, the

         10  consequences, and the growing use of the model in

         11  California and elsewhere, we were very pleased that

         12  they came so far to share their experience with us.

         13  And in that experience, they were able to share with

         14  us some of the Fiscal impacts, and more importantly,

         15  on the other side, the fact that they were finding

         16  less litigation, as a result of that law, and will

         17  get us some data to back up that experience.

         18                 And so, we also looked at provisions

         19  that are in the Intro 512, and we looked at how

         20  reasonable and constructive and cost effective they

         21  were.  The existing data gathering and performance

         22  measures that are really the foundation of Intro

         23  512. Our city workers helped us understand, that in

         24  some respects that work is already being done by

         25  them, and therefore it can simply be implemented,
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          2  because we already have to some extent, the work

          3  force in place the skills in place, and in many

          4  respects, they are being used in ways that are not

          5  as relevant as they should be.

          6                 There are current problems and gaps

          7  that can be addressed by Intro 512.  Problems like

          8  those provided in Nicholas versus Petta, regarding

          9  the ACS Child Removal Policy and domestic violence

         10  cases that can be avoided.  And it will also help in

         11  addressing the needs of immigrants, that where the

         12  City is falling short, it can help many City

         13  employees break through the glass ceiling, as we

         14  learned through organizations like the Blacks in

         15  Government, and the Fire Department representatives

         16  of the Vulcan Society.  Obviously, current

         17  mechanisms to discrimination are not working, and

         18  for good workers trying to break into the trades,

         19  affirmative measures that can address multiple forms

         20  of discrimination are needed.  The institutionalized

         21  avenues for input, are preventing people harm by bad

         22  policies from having readily, to repeatedly file new

         23  legislation.

         24                 The present system is discouraging.

         25  It is a system that is taking too long, and in some
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          2  cases discouraging people from even taking advantage

          3  of it.

          4                 And so this is a hearing I believe,

          5  that has really opened the eyes to myself, my

          6  colleagues, and other New Yorkers, as to the

          7  seriousness of, not only of the discrimination, but

          8  the shortcomings of the mechanisms that we have in

          9  place, and the value of the tool, of the tools, that

         10  Intro 512A provides.

         11                 This is our first hearing.  I am

         12  confident that shortly we will have a second

         13  hearing.  There is work to be done. In terms of not

         14  only convincing the administration, but also in

         15  terms of convincing my colleagues in the city

         16  council.  But it is good work.  There is a lot of

         17  energy that this Human Rights Initiative has already

         18  exhibited.  I am sure that energy will be fortified

         19  as a result of today's hearing, and therefore we

         20  look forward to continuing to work with you.  This

         21  meeting is now adjourned.

         22                 (Hearing concluded at 1:45 p.m.)
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